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THESE CONSTRUCTION TECHNIQUES, invisible to outside
eyes, provide the essential support and stability that allow skyscrapers to

reach the heights at which we marvel.

Companies are no different. They cannot grow without the founda-
tion, structure and alignment needed for support, stability and

resistance to external forces.

Sterling Bancshares’ priority over the last year was to fortify
its own foundation, structure and alignment to ensure long-term
productive, profitable quality growth across the entire Company.
Simply stated, the various strategic decisions and actions we
took in 2003 enabled us to refocus in 2004 on what we do best -
serving owner-operated businesses. With a re-energized approach
and simplified business model we have been able to concentrate
on building the Company through our core competencies of internal
growth, opening new offices and acquiring banks that fit us strategi-
cally. We believe that we have solidified a foundation for the future that
will produce the results investors have come to expect from Sterling over

the past 30 years.

One of the steps we took during the second half of 2004 was to reduce our
overall expense base and control the growth of expenses going forward.

After a thorough review by management and employees, numerous

expense reduction initiatives and alignment projects were identified. These
initiatives included the consolidation of smaller offices, disposition of
unprofitable initiatives, modification of certain perquisite benefit programs,

redirection of our training programs to focus on meeting shareholder



objectives of profitability and growth, and continued reduction

in staffing levels through attrition.

Our competitive advantage has always come from delivering
banking products and services to owner-operated businesses within
our Texas markets. We remain dedicated to holding this advantage
going forward. With-a continued commitment to maximizing share-
holder value, we can improve productivity and profitability without
impairing our ability to provide exceptional service to our business

customers.

We hired 24 new lenders during 2004 and continue to interview addi-
tional candidates. We opened one new full-service office and one new
loan production office in the Dallas area. In Houston, we completed
construction and are now operating two existing offices in permanent
facilities. A third permanent facility for another existing Houston
office will open in the first half of 2005. In the first quarter of 2004,
we fully integrated three new San Antonio offices from the Plaza

Bank acquisition that occurred at the end of 2003.

As short-term interest rates continue to rise, we are directing our full
attention on deploying our capital to generate quality loan and deposit
growth, increase our non-interest income, and identify acquisition

candidates in our markets that fit us strategically.

Sterling entered 2005 with improved fundamental operating trends
resulting from our efforts in 2004. We also opened 2005 with our
third consecutive appearance on FORTUNE Magazine’s list of the
100 Best Companies to Work For.

Our long-term growth and profitability cannot rely on interest rates
and corporate awards alone; we must take Sterling’s growth and
performance to the next level. The competitive environment we are
in and the growth Sterling Bancshares has experienced in the past do

not entitle us to do any less.

The builders of the tall buildings ensured before the first steel rose

from the ground that their creations had the necessary support,




Steven F. Retzloff, Chairman of the Board, and J. Downey Bridgwater, President & Chief Executive Officer

stability and resistance to external forces from the foundation of their
structures. Just like those builders, our bankers are committed to provid-
ing the long-term support, stability and resistance critical to Sterling’s
stature as a leading bank for owner-operated businesses in Texas.

Thanks for being a part of Sterling’s success.

Sincerely,
Steven F. Retzloff J. Downey Bridgwater

Chairman of the Board President & Chief Executive Officer



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(dollars in thousands except per share data)

INCOME STATEMENT
Fiscal year ended December 31 2004 2003 2002
Net Income $24,963 $49,110 $36,551
Income from Continuing Operations 24963 28,354 33,183
PER SHARE
Earnings Per Share (Diluted)
Total $0.55 $1.10 $0.82
Continuing Operations 0.55 0.64 0.74
Book Value per Common Share at Period End 6.95 6.55 5.65
KEY PERFORMANCE RATIOS
Return on Average Assets
Total 0.78% 1.48% 121%
Continuing Operations 0.78% 0.86% 1.10%
Return on Average Common Equity
Total 8.23% 18.18% 15.48%
Continuing Operations 8.23% 10.50% 14.06%
Net Interest Margin 4.65% 4.68% 5.32%
BALANCE SHEET
Total Assets $3,336,070 $3,206,880 $3,585,220
Loans 2,344 977 2,157,039 2,644 862
Deposits 2,443 967 2,418,369 2,673,072
Shareholders’ Equity 313,172 292,596 249,327




INVESTOR INFORMATION

STOCK MARKET PRICE RANGE AND DIVIDENDS ON COMMON STOCK

2004 2004 2004 2004 2004
For the Quarter 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Year
High Closing Price $14.22 $14.19 $14.00 $15.00 $15.00
Low Closing Price 11.92 12.17 12.30 13.02 11.92
Dividend 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.20
Stock Listings Corporate Headquarters Analysts

Sterling Bancshares, Inc. common
stock 1s traded through the Nasdaq
National Market System under the
symbol SBIB. In newspaper listings,
Sterling Bancshares stock is frequent-
ly listed as SterBcsh or StrlBnc.

Registrar and Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company
Shareholder Services

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

Shareholders who have questions
regarding their ownership of Sterling
Bancshares stock should contact

the Registrar at 800-937-5449 or

www.amstock.com.

Dividend Calendar

Dividends declared on Sterling
Bancshares common stock are
payable quarterly during February,
May, August and November.

Sterling Bancshares, Inc.
2550 North Loop West
Suite 600

P.O. Box 40333

Houston, Texas 77240-0333
713-466-8300

Independent Auditors

Deloitte & Touche, LLP
333 Clay Street, Suite 2300
Houston, Texas 77002

SEC Reports and
Additional Information

Analysts, investors, and others
seeking copies of Sterling Banc-
shares Annual Report (Form 10-K)
and Quarterly Reports (Form 10-Q)
to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or additional
financial information about
Sterling Bancshares, Inc. may

visit www.banksterling.com.

The firms listed below follow
Sterling Bancshares stock:

o Brean Murray & Co.

o Cohen Bros. & Company

o FTN Midwest Research

o Hibemnia Southcoast Capital

o Hoefer & Arnett

o Howe Bamnes Investments, Inc.
o JP Morgan Securities Inc.

o Keefe, Bruyette and Woods Inc.
o Legg Mason Wood Walker, Inc.
o Piper Jaffray

o RBC Capital Markets

o Sanders Morris Harris Group

o Stanford Group Company

s Stephens Inc.

o Stifel Nicolaus & Company

o

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders
will be held on Monday, April 25,
2005 at 1:30 p.m. at the Hilton
Houston Post Oak, 2001 Post Oak
Boulevard, Houston, Texas 77056.
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HOUSTON

SAN ANTONIO

DALLAS

STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. is the sole owner of Sterling Bank, a leader in banking services for
owner-operated businesses in Houston, San Antonio and Dallas — the nation’s fourth, eighth and ninth largest
cities. The bank has grown rapidly since going public in October 1992 with assets at that time of $256 million.
As of December 31, 2004, Sterling’s assets totaled $3.3 billion.

Over its 30-year history, the bank has produced excellent results by concentrating on its core competencies
of internal growth, opening new offices, and strategic mergers and acquisitions. In addition, the bank has a strong

capital position which will support future growth opportunities.




UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004
OR

(| TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 0-20750

'STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.
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Texas 74-2175590
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2550 North Loop West, Suite 600 77092
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
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{Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days: Yes No (O
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Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the
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The aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock held by non-affiliates as of June 30,
2004, the last business day of the most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was $579,269,629 based
on the closing sales price of $14.19 on such date. For purposes of this calculation, affiliates are defined as
all directors and executive officers.

As of March 3, 2005, registrant had outstanding 45,135,715 shares of Common Stock, $1.00 par
value.

Documents incorporated by reference: Portions of Sterling Bancshares, Inc.’s definitive proxy
statement relating to the registrant’s 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which proxy statement will be
filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of the end of the registrant’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004, are incorporated by reference into Part III of this Form 10-K.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

The disclosures in this item are qualified by ‘the séction entitled “Forward-Looking Statements” in
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in
Item 7 of this report.

OVERVIEW

For over 30 years, Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and Sterling Bank have been committed to serving small
to mid-sized businesses. We provide a broad array of financial services to Texas businesses and consumers
through 36 banking offices in the greater metropolitan areas of Houston, San Antonio and Dallas, Texas.
These cities are the 4th, 8th and 9th largest, respectively, in the United States based on population
according to the U.S. Census Bureau.

Sterling Bancshares was incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas in 1980 and became the
parent bank holding company of Sterling Bank in 1981. Sterling Bank was chartered in 1974 under the
laws of the State of Texas. Our principal executive offices are located at 2550 North Loop West,

Suite 600, Houston, Texas, 77092 and our telephone number is (713) 466-8300.

In this filing, we may refer to Sterling Bancshares, Inc., on a parent-only basis, as “Sterling
Bancshares” and to Sterling Bank as the “Bank”. Sterling Bancshares, the Bank and other subsidiaries of
both may be collectively referred to as the “Company.”

At December 31, 2004, we had consolidated total assets of $3.3 billion, deposits of $2.4 billion, and
shareholders’ equity of $313.2 million.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the acquisition of South Texas Capital Group, Inc.,
a privately held bank holding company that operated three banking offices in San Antonio, Texas under
the name of Plaza Bank. Because systems consolidation efforts were still underway at the end of 2003, we
had two state-banking charters (Sterling Bank and Plaza Bank). The operational integration of Plaza Bank
was completed in January 2004 and we now operate these acquired offices under the name of Sterling
Bank.

On September 30, 2003, we sold our 80% interest in Sterling Capital Mortgage Company
(*SCMC”). SCMC provided mortgage-banking services to consumers through 110 production offices in
Texas and 15 other states. After we acquired our initial interest in 1996, SCMC grew substantially. We
sold SCMC because its operations were not a part of our fundamental business strategy and its size placed
us at significant risk to adverse changes in the mortgage industry caused by interest rate fluctuations. This
sale has allowed us to focus on our core business strategy of providing commercial banking services to
small and mid-sized owner operated businesses.

SCMC’s operations were reported previously as the Company’s mortgage banking segment. Following
the sale of SCMC, the Company operates a single segment engaged in the commercial banking business.
The results of SCMC have been segregated from continuing operations and are reported as discontinued
operations in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Commercial Banking

We provide a wide range of commercial and consumer banking services, including demand, savings
and time deposits; commercial, real estate and consumer loans; merchant credit card services; letters of
credit; and cash and asset management services. In addition, we facilitate sales of brokerage, mutual fund,
alternative financing and insurance products through third party vendors. Bank deposits are insured up to
applicable limits by the Bank Insurance Fund (“BIF”) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(“FDIC”).




Our primary lending focus is providing commercial loans and owner-occupied real estate loans to local
businesses with annual sales ranging from $300 thousand to $30 million. Typically, these customers have
financing requirements between $50 thousand and $4 million. The Bank’s credit range allows for greater
diversity in the loan portfolio, less competition from large banks, and better pricing opportunities. At
December 31, 2004, we had more than 19 thousand loans ‘and our average loan size was approximately
$123 thousand.

Business Banking Strategy. Under our business banking strategy, we focus on offering a broad line
of financial products and services for small to mid-sized businesses through full service banking offices.
Each banking office is managed by senior management with extensive lending experience. These managers
exercise substantial authority over credit and pricing decisions, subject to a concurrence process and loan
committee approval for larger credits. This approach, coupled with continuity of service by the same staff
members, enables us to develop long-term customer relationships, maintain high quality service and
respond quickly to customer needs. We believe that our emphasis on local relationship banking, together
with a conservative approach to lending, are important factors in our success and growth.

The Bank offers services which extend beyond traditional banking needs thréugh our Treasury
Management, specialized lending (including energy, leasing and wholesale real estate lending) and
Trust Services groups. Additionally, the Bank’s Capital Markets group is involved in secondary purchases
of government guaranteed loans from originating lenders and secondary market dealers. These additional
services have enabled the Bank to be a more comprehensive financial resource dedicated to helping owner
operated businesses meet their financial services needs.

We maintain a strong community orientation by, among other things, supporting the active
participation of our officers and employees in local charitable, civic, school, religious and community
development activities. Each banking office may also appoint selected customers to a business development
board that assists in introducing prospective customers to us and in developing or improving products and
services to meet customer needs. Our lending and investing activities are funded primarily by core deposits.
This stable source of funding comes to us by developing broad banking relationships with customers and
because our 36 banking offices offer customers a high level of convenience and service. Over one-third of
our total deposits are noninterest-bearing demand deposits.

We further facilitate customer service by centralizing certain operational and support functions that
are transparent to customers. This has allowed us to improve consistency and cost efficiencies in the
delivery of products and services by each banking office. Centralized functions include services such as
data processing, bookkeeping, accounting and finance, loan administration, loan review, compliance, risk
management and internal auditing. Credit policy and administration, strategic planning, marketing and
other administrative services also are provided centrally. Our banking offices work closely with our
operational and support functions to develop new products and services and to introduce enhancements to
existing products and services.

Company Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy has been concentrated on increasing our banking presence in the greater
Houston, San Antonio and Dallas market areas. We have grown through a combination of internal growth,
mergers and acquisitions and the opening of new banking offices. We regularly evaluate opportunities to
acquire banks and other financial services companies that complement our existing business, expand our
market coverage and enhance our product offerings. In late 2003, we formed a wholesale real estate
funding department to diversify our loan portfolio geographically, while supplementing our growth in our
niche market segment, small to medium-size businesses. This department focuses on the origination, co-
origination and purchase of commercial real estate loans referred by smaller financial institutions
nationwide. More than.80% of these loans have variable interest rates and amortize over twenty- or
twenty-five years.




De Novo Offices. De novo offices are new banking offices that we build or lease. Since 2000, we have
opened five new banking offices, three of which are located in Houston. During 2004, we opened a loan
production office in Dallas, where in December 2000 we had first expanded outside the Houston market.

In most cases where we open a new office, we issue a separate series of convertible preferred stock to
local business owners and others who are able to contribute substantially to the business development
efforts of the new banking office. These preferred shares typically are convertible into common shares after
three years at ratios based on deposit growth objectives of the new banking office. Refer to Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more discussion of these preferred stock issuances. Strategically,
this practice is not designed to raise capital, but rather to attract and retain the foundational relationships
that allow a new office to achieve profitability in a shorter period of time.

Mevgers and Acquisitions. Acquisitions have been important to our growth. Our acquisitions since
2000 are listed in the following table:
Total Assets at Total Loans at  Total Deposits at

Acquired Entity Acquisition Date Acquisition Date Acquisition Date  Acquisition Date
South Texas Capital Group, Inc. ........ October 31, 2003 $ 83 million $ 65 million $ 68 million
ENB Bankshares, Inc. ................. September 13, 2002 71 million 64 million 58 million
Community Bancshares, Inc. ............ December 17, 2001 118 million 80 million 115 million
Lone Star Bancarporation, Inc.(1) ....... August 23, 2001 165 million 126 million 153 million

CaminoReal Baricshares of Texas, Inc. ... March 22, 2001 284 million 146 million 248 million

(1) Accounted for using the pooling-of-interests method.

Refer to Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding recent
mergers and acquisitions. We continue to seek acquisitions and new office opportunities as they become
available and prove to be aligned with our business banking philosophy.

Strategic Divestitures of Banking Offices. During 2004, we closed one banking office and merged its
operations into another location. We retained substantially all of the loans and deposits associated with this
location. The bank building and related fixtures for this location were sold for a pre-tax loss of $27
thousand.

During 2003, we sold five rural banking offices that were not consistent with our focus on large urban
centers with greater concentrations of owner operated businesses. These banking offices were acquired as
parts of previous acquisitions and included the banking offices in Eagle Pass, Pearsall, Crystal City, Carrizo
Springs, and Highlands, Texas. In the aggregate, assets of $37.8 million, loans of $34.0 million and
deposits of $150.9 million were sold in three transactions for an aggregate pre-tax net gain of $3.5 million.

Competition

The financial services industry is highly competitive. Also, there are a number of new banking
competitors who have entered, or greatly expanded their presence in Texas — particularly in the Houston,
San Antonio and Dallas markets in which we operate. We experience significant competition in attracting
and retaining deposits and making loans, as well as in providing other financial services in each of our
market areas. Product pricing, customer convenience and service capabilities, and breadth of product lines
are significant competitive factors. We also experience significant competition in attracting, developing and
retaining qualified banking professionals.

Our most direct competition for loans comes from other banks. Our most direct competition for
deposits comes from other banks, savings institutions and credit unions doing business in our market areas.
As with all banking organizations, we have also experienced competition from nonbanking sources,
including mutual funds, corporate and governmental debt securities and other investment alternatives
offered within and outside of our primary market arcas. Many of our competitors are much larger in total
assets and capitalization, have greater access to capital markets and offer a broader range of financial
products and services, in particular on the retail side of our business.
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SUPERYVISION AND REGULATION

Bank holding companies and banks are extensively regulated under federal and state laws. This
regulation is intended primarily for the protection of depositors and the deposit insurance fund and not for
the benefit of shareholders. Set forth below is a summary description of the material laws and regulations
that relate to our operations. The following descriptions do not purport to be complete and are quahﬁed in
their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations.

Sterling Bancshares

Sterling Bancshares and its second tier holding company, Sterling Bancorporation, Inc., are bank
holding companies registered under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (“BHCA”),
and are subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve Board. Federal laws subject bank
holding companies to particular restrictions on the types of activities in which they may engage, and to a
range of supervisory requirements and activities, including regulatory enforcement actions for violations of
laws and policies. In addition, Texas law authorizes the Texas Department of Banking to supervise and
regulate a holding company controlling a state bank. Further, our securities are registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act”). As such, we are subject to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading and
other requirements and restrictions of the Exchange Act. ‘

Permissible Activities. As a bank holding company, Sterling Bancshares’ activities, as well as the
activities of entities which it controls or in which it owns 5% or more of the voting securities, are limited
by the BHCA to banking, management and control of banks, furnishing or performing services for its
subsidiaries, or any other activity which the Federal Reserve Board determines to be incidental or closely
related to banking or managing or controlling banks. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted in 2000
amended the BHCA and granted certain expanded powers to bank holding companies as discussed below.
In approving acquisitions of entities engaged in banking-related activities, the Federal Reserve Board
considers a number of factors, including the expected benefits to the public, such as greater convenience
and increased competition or gains in efficiency, which are weighted against the risks of possible adverse
effects, such as an attempt to monopolize the business of banking, undue concentration of resources,
decreased or unfair competition, conflicts of interest, or unsound banking practices.

Non-Banking Activities. The BHCA sets forth exceptions to its general prohibition against bank
holding company ownership of voting shares in any company engaged in non-banking activities. The
exceptions include certain activities exempt based upon the type of activity and those determined by the
Federal Reserve Board to be closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley (“G-L-B”) Act, which became effective in 2000,
authorizes affiliations between banking, securities and insurance firms and authorizes bank holding
companies and state banks, if permitted by state law, to engage in a variety of new financial activities.
Bank holding companies may also elect to become financial holding companies if they meet certain
requirements relating to capitalization and management and have filed a declaration with the Federal
Reserve Board electing to be a financial holding company. Among the new activities that are permitted by
bank holding companies are securities and insurance brokerage, securities underwriting, insurance
underwriting and merchant banking. The Federal Reserve Board, in consultation with the Department of
Treasury, may approve additional financial activities.

We have not filed an election to be a financial holding company. The G-L-B Act is intended to grant
to community banks certain powers as a matter of right that larger institutions have accumulated on an ad
hoc basis. Nevertheless, this act has resulted in significant consolidation in the financial industry which has
increased competition from larger institutions and other types of companies offering financial products,
many of which may have substant1ally more financial resources than we do.

USA PATRIOT Act. The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools
Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA PATRIOT Act”) is intended to .
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strengthen U.S. law enforcement’s and the intelligence communities’ ability to work cohesively to combat
terrorism on a variety of fronts. Its impact is significant and wide-ranging. The regulations adopted by the
U.S. Department of Treasury require financial institutions to maintain policies, procedures and controls
designed to address, any or all of the following matters: money laundering; suspicious activities and
currency transaction reporting; and currency crimes. We maintain policies and procedures designed to
comply with the USA PATRIOT Act requirements.

Safety and Soundness Standards. The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act
of 1989 (“FIRREA™) expanded the Federal Reserve Board's authority to prohibit activities of bank
holding companies and their non-banking subsidiaries which represent unsafe and unsound banking
practices or which constitute violations of laws or regulations. Notably, FIRREA increased the amount of
civil monetary penalties that the Federal Reserve Board can assess for certain activities conducted on a
knowing and reckless basis, if those activities cause a substantial loss to a depository institution. The
penalties can be as high as $1 million per day. FIRREA also expanded the scope of individuals and
entities against which such penalties may be assessed.

The federal agencies that regulate banks and savings associations jointly issued guidelines for safe and
sound banking operations as required by Section 132 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act (“FDICIA”). The guidelines identify the fundamental standards that the four agencies
follow when evaluating the operational and managerial controls at insured institutions. An institution’s
performance will be evaluated against these standards during the regulators’ periodic on-site examinations.

Dividend Restrictions. 1t is the policy of the Federal Reserve Board that bank holding companies
should pay cash dividends on common stock only out of income available over the past year and only if
prospective earnings retention is consistent with the organization’s expected future needs and financial
condition. This policy provides that bank holding companies should not maintain a level of cash dividends
that undermines the bank holding company’s ability to serve as a source of strength to its banking
subsidiaries.

Under Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holding company is expected to act as a source of
financial strength to each of its banking subsidiaries and commit resources to their support. Such support
may be required at times when, absent this Federal Reserve Board policy, a bank holding company may
not be inclined to provide it.

Capital Adeguacy Requirements. The Federal Reserve Board monitors the capital adequacy of bank
holding companies and has adopted a system using risk-based capital adequacy guidelines to evaluate their
capital adequacy. Under the risk-based capital guidelines, different categories of assets are assigned
different risk weights, based generally on the perceived credit risk of the asset. These risk weights are
multiplied by corresponding asset balances to determine a “risk-weighted” asset base. Certain off-balance
sheet items are added to the risk-weighted asset base by converting them to a balance sheet equivalent and
assigning to them the appropriate risk weight. In addition, the guidelines define each of the capital
components. Total capital is defined as the sum of “core capital elements” (“Tier 1) and “supplemental
capital elements” (“Tier 2”), with “Tier 2” being limited to 100% of “Tier 1.” For bank holding
companies, “Tier 1 capital includes, with certain restrictions, common shareholders’ equity, noncumula-
tive perpetual preferred stock, a limited amount of cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related

.surplus, and a limited amount of cumulative perpetual stock and minority interest in equity accounts of
consolidated subsidiaries, less goodwill and other intangible assets. “Tier 27 capital includes, with certain
limitations, perpetual preferred stock not meeting the Tier 1 definition, mandatory convertible securities,
subordinated debt, and allowances for credit losses, less certain required deductions. The guidelines require
Sterling Bancshares to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital-to-risk-weighted assets of 8.0% (of which
at least 4.0% is required to be comprised of “Tier 1” capital elements).

In addition tto the risk-based capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC have
adopted the use of a minimum “Tier 1” leverage ratio as an additional tool to evaluate the capital
adequacy of banks and bank holding companies. The banking organization’s “Tier 17 leverage ratio is
defined to be its “Tier 1” capital divided by its average total consolidated assets. Certain highly rated bank

6




holding companies may maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 3.0% “Tier 1” capital to total average assets
but other bank holding companies are required to maintain a leverage ratio of 4.0% to 5.0%.

For information regarding the capital ratios of Sterling Bancshares see the discussion under the
section captioned “Capital Resources” included in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Note 18 — Regulatory Matters in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report.

Imposition of Liability for Undercapitalized Subsidiaries. A bank holding company that fails to meet
the applicable risk-based capital standards will be at a disadvantage. For example, Federal Reserve Board
policy discourages the payment of dividends by a bank holding company from borrowed funds as well as
payments that would adversely affect capital adequacy. Failure to meet the capital guidelines may result in
the issuance of supervisory or enforcement actions by the Federal Reserve Board. FDICIA requires bank
regulators to take ““prompt corrective action” to resolve problems associated with insured depository
institutions whose capital declines below certain levels.

Acquisitions by Bank Holding Companies. The BHCA requires a bank holding company to obtain the
prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board before it acquires all or substantially all of the assets of any
bank, or ownership or control of any voting shares of any bank, if after such acquisition it would own or
control, directly or indirectly, more than 5% of the voting shares of such bank. In approving bank
acquisitions, the Federal Reserve Board considers the financial and managerial resources and future
prospects of the bank holding company and the banks concerned the convenience and needs of the
communities to be served, and various competitive factors. The Attorney General of the United States
may, within 30 days after approval of an acquisition by the Federal Reserve Board, bring an action
challenging such acquisition under the federal antitrust laws, in which case the effectiveness of such
approval is stayed pending a final ruling by the courts.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (“CRA”) and the
regulations promuigated by the FDIC to implement CRA are intended to ensure that banks meet the
credit needs of their service area, including low and moderate income communities and individuals,
consistent with safe and sound banking practices. The CRA regulations also require the banking regulatory
authorities to evaluate a bank’s record in meeting the needs of its service area when considering
applications to establish new offices or consummate any merger or acquisition transaction. Under
FIRREA, the federal banking agencies are required to rate each insured institution’s performance under
CRA and to make such information publicly available. In the case of an acquisition by a bank holding
company, the CRA performance records of the banks involved in the transaction are reviewed as part of
the processing of the acquisition application. A CRA rating other than ‘outstanding’ or ‘satisfactory’ can
substantially delay or block a transaction. Based upon our most recent CRA examination the Bank has a
satisfactory CRA rating.

Interstate Banking. The Ricgie-Neal Interstate Banking and Branching Efficiency Act of 1994 (the
“Interstate Branching Act”) increased the ease and likelihood of interstate branching throughout much of
the United States. The Interstate Branching Act removes state law barriers to acquisitions in all states and
allows multi-state banking operations to merge into a single bank with interstate branches. Interstate
banking and branching authority is subject to certain conditions and restrictions, such as capital adequacy,
management and CRA compliance. The Interstate Branching Act preempts existing barriers that restrict
entry into all states, such as regional compacts and reciprocal agreements, thus creating opportunities for
expansion into markets that were previously closed. Under the Interstate Branching Act, bank holding
companies are now able to acquire banks in any state, subject to certain conditions. Banks acquired
pursuant to this authority may subsequently be converted to branches. Interstate branching is permitted by
allowing banks to merge across state lines to form a single institution. Interstate merger transactions can
be used to consolidate existing multi-state operations or to acquire new branches. A bank may establish a
new branch as its initial entry into a state only if the state has authorized de novo branching. In addition,
out-of-state banks may merge with a single branch of a bank if the state has authorized such a transaction.
The Federal Reserve Board, however, will only allow the acquisition by a bank holding company of an
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interest in any bank located in another state if the statutory laws of the state in which the target bank is
located expressly authorize such acquisitions. Texas elected to “opt out” of the Interstate Branching Act.
Despite having opted out of the Interstate Branching Act, the Texas Banking Act permits, in certain
circumstances, out-of-state bank holding companies to acquire certain existing banks and bank holding
companies in Texas.

Sarbanes+-Oxley Act of 2002. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act is intended to increase corporate responsibil-
ity, to provide for enhanced penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded
companies and to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures
pursuant to securities laws.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act is the most far-reaching U.S. securities legislation enacted in some time. It
generally applies to all companies, both U.S. and non-U.S,, that file or are required to file periodic reports
with the SEC under the Exchange Act.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act includes additional disclosure requirements and new corporate governance
rules, requires ithe SEC and securities exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure, corporate
governance and other related rules and mandates further studies of certain issues by the SEC. The |
Sarbanes-Oxley Act represents significant federal involvement in matters traditionally left to state
regulatory systems, such as the regulation of the accounting profession, and to state corporate law, such as
the relationship between a board of directors and management and between a board of directors and its
committees.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act addresses, among other matters:
¢ audit committees for all listed companies;
» certification of financial statements by the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer;

+ the forfeiture of bonuses or other incentive-based compensation and profits from the sale of an
issuer’s securities by directors and senior officers in the twelve month period following initial
publication of any financial statements that later require restatement due to material noncompliance
of the issuer or misconduct;

+ a prohibition on insider trading during pension plan black-out periods;

» disclosure of off-balance sheet transactions;

* a prohibition on personal loans to directors and officers except for financial institutions;
+ expedited filing requirements for Form 4’s;

+ disclosure of a code of ethics, if applicable, and filing a Form 8-K for a change or waiver of such
code;

+ accelerated filing of periodic reports;
+ the formation of a public accounting oversight board; -
» auditor independence; and

« increased criminal penalties for violations of securities laws.

Sterling Bank

Sterling Bank is a Texas-chartered banking association and its deposits are insured, up to applicable
limits, by the Bank Insurance Fund of the FDIC. The Bank is subject to supervision and regulation by
both the Texas Department of Banking and the FDIC and may be subject to special restrictions,
supervisory requirements and potential enforcement actions. The Bank is not a member of the Federal
Reserve System; however, the Federal Reserve Board also has supervisory authority that indirectly affects
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the-Bank. The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank and, therefore, is subject also to
compliance with its requirements.

Permissible Activities for State-Chartered Institutions. The Texas Constitution provides that a
Texas-chartered bank has the same rights and privileges that are granted to national banks domiciled in
Texas. However, FDICIA provides that no state bank or subsidiary thereof may engage as principal in any
activity not permitted for national banks, unless the institution complies with applicable capital
requirements and the FDIC determines that the activity poses no significant risk to the Bank Insurance
Fund (“BIF”).

Branching. Texas law provides that a Texas-chartered bank can establish a branch anywhere in
Texas provided that the branch is approved in advance by the Commissioner of the Texas Department of
Banking (the “Commissioner”). The branch must also be approved by the FDIC, which considers a
number of factors, including financial history, capital adequacy, earnings prospects, character of
management, needs of the community, and consistency with corporate powers. There are no federal
limitations on the ability of insured non-member state banks to branch across state lines; however, such
branching would be subject to applicable state law restrictions.

Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates and Insiders. Transactions between the Bank and its
nonbanking affiliates, including Sterling Bancshares, are subject to Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act
and Regulation W promulgated thereunder. Section 23A defines “covered transactions,” which include
extensions of credit, and limits a bank’s covered transactions with any affiliate to ten percent (10%) of
such bank’s capital and surplus. All covered and exempt transactions between a bank and its affiliates must
be on terms and conditions consistent with safe and sound banking practices, and banks and their
subsidiaries are prohibited from purchasing low-quality assets from the bank’s affiliates. Finally,

Section 23A requires that all of a bank’s extensions of credit to its affiliates be appropriately secured by -
acceptable collateral. s : '

Affiliate transactions are also subject to Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act which generally
requires that covered and other transactions between the Bank and its affiliates be on terms substantially
the same, or at least as favorable to the Bank, as those prevailing at that time for comparable transactions
with or involving other non-affiliated persons.

The restrictions on loans to directors, executive officers, principal shareholders and their related
interests (collectively, the “insiders”) contained in the Federal Reserve Act and Regulation O apply to all
insured institutions and their subsidiaries and holding companies. These restrictions include limits on loans
to one borrower and conditions that must be met before such a loan can be made. There is also an
aggregate limitation on all loans to insiders and their related interests. These loans cannot exceed the
institution’s total unimpaired capital and surplus, and the FDIC may determine that a lesser amount is
appropriate. Insiders are subject to enforcement actions for knowingly accepting loans in violation of
applicable restrictions.

Capital Adequacy Requirements. The Bank is subject to capital adequacy requirements promulgated
by the FDIC and the Texas Department of Banking. The FDIC may establish higher minimum
requirements if, for example, a bank has previously received special attention or has a high susceptibility to
interest rate risk.

The FDIC’s risk-based capital guidelines generally require state banks to have a minimum ratio of
Tier 1 capital to total risk-weighted assets of 4.0% and a ratio of total capital to total risk-weighted assets
of 8.0%.

The FDIC’s leverage guidelines require state banks to maintain Tier 1 capital of not less than 4.0% of
average total assets, except in the case of certain highly rated banks for which the requirement is 3.0% of
average total assets. The Texas Banking Department has issued a policy which generally requires state
chartered banks to maintain a leverage ratio (defined in accordance with federal capital guidelines) of
6.0%.




Corrective Measures for Capital Deficiencies. The federal banking regulators are required to take
“prompt corrective action” with respect to capital-deficient institutions. Agency regulations define, for each
capital category, the levels at which institutions are “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized,”
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” and “critically undercapitalized.” A “well capitalized”
bank has a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% or higher; a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or
higher; a leverage ratio of 5.0% or higher; and is not subject to any written agreement, order or directive
requiring it to maintain a specific capital ratio for any capital measure. An “adequately capitalized” bank
has a total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or higher; a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4.0% or higher; a
leverage ratio of 4.0% or higher (3.0% or higher if the bank was rated a composite 1 in its most recent
examination report and is not experiencing significant growth). A bank is “undercapitalized” if it fails to
meet any one of the ratios required to be adequately capitalized. The Company believes that as of
December 31, 2004, the Bank was “well capitalized” based on the guidelines and ratios for purposes of the
EFDIC’s prompt corrective action regulations.

In addition to requiring undercapitalized institutions to submit a capital restoration plan, agency
regulations contain broad restrictions on certain activities of undercapitalized institutions including asset
growth, acquisition, branch establishment and expansion into new lines of business. With certain
exceptions, an insured depository institution is prohibited from making capital distributions, including
dividends, and is prohibited from paying management fees to control persons if the institution would be
undercapitalized after any such distribution or payment.

As an institution’s capital decreases, the FDIC’s enforcement powers become more severe. A
significantly undercapitalized institution is subject to mandated capital raising activities, restrictions on
interest rates paid and transactions with affiliates, removal of management and other restrictions. The
FDIC has only very limited discretion in dealing with a critically undercapitalized institution and is
virtually required to appoint a receiver or conservator.

Banks with risk-based capital and leverage ratios below the required minimums may also be subject to
certain administrative actions, including the termination of deposit insurance upon notice and hearing, or a
temporary suspension of insurance without a hearing in the event the institution has no tangible capital.

For information regarding the capital ratios of the Bank see the discussion under the section captioned
“Capital Resources” included in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations and Note 18 — Regulatory Matters in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in this report.

Brokered Deposit Restrictions. FIRREA and FDICIA generally limit institutions that are not well
capitalized from accepting brokered deposits. In general, undercapitalized institutions may not solicit,
accept or renew brokered deposits. Adequately capitalized institutions may not solicit, accept or renew
brokered deposits unless they obtain a waiver from the FDIC. Even in that event, the institution must
comply with rate limitations imposed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Act.

Restrictions on Subsidiary Banks. Dividends paid by the Bank provided substantially all of Sterling
Bancshares’ cash flow during 2004 and will continue to do so in the foreseeable future. Under federal law,
a bank may not pay a dividend that results in an “undercapitalized” situation. At December 31, 2004,
there was an aggregate of approximately $44.2 million available for the payment of dividends by the Bank
to Sterling Bancshares.

Other requirements in Texas law affecting the operation of subsidiary banks include requirements
relating to maintenance of reserves against deposits, restrictions on the nature and amount of loans that
may be made and the interest that may be charged thereon and limitations relating to investments and
other activities. ‘ :

Examinations. The FDIC periodically examines and evaluates insured banks. FDIC examinations
are conducted every 12 months. The FDIC may, however, accept the result of a Texas Department of
Banking examination in lieu of conducting an independent examination. FDICIA authorizes the FDIC to
assess the institution for its costs of conducting the examinations.
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The Texas Banking Commissioner also conducts examinations annually, unless additional examina-
tions are deemed necessary to safeguard the interests of shareholders, depositors and creditors. The
Commissioner may accept the results of a federal examination in lieu of conducting an independent
examination. However, since the Bank’s total assets exceed $1 billion, the FDIC and the Texas
Department of Banking conduct a joint examination on an annual basis.

Audit Reports. Insured institutions with total assets of $500 million or more must submit annual
audit reports prepared by an independent registered public accounting firm to federal and state regulators.
In some instances, the audit report of the institution’s holding company can be used to satisfy this
requirement. In addition, financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, management’s certifications concerning responsibility for the financial statements, internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements designated by the FDIC, and an attestation by the
independent registered public accounting firm regarding the statements of management relating to the
internal controls must be submitted. For certain institutions with total assets of more than $3 billion, an
independent registered public accounting firm may be required to review quarterly financial statements.
FDICIA requires that independent audit committees be formed, consisting solely of outside directors.
Committees must include members with experience in banking or financial management, must have access
to outside counsel, and must not include representatives of large customers. Our audit committee is
comprised solely of outside directors with at least one certified public accountant designated as a financial
expert.

Deposit Insurance Assessments. The FDIC assesses deposit insurance premiums on all banks in
order to adequately fund the BIF so as to resolve any insured institution that is declared insolvent by its
primary regulator. The FDIC has established a risk-based deposit insurance premium system to calculate a
depository institution’s semi-annual deposit insurance assessment. The FDIC’s semi-annual assessment is
based upon the designated reserve ratio for the BIF and the probability and extent to which the BIF will
incur a loss with respect to the institution. In addition, the FDIC can impose special assessments to cover
the cost of borrowings from the U.S. Treasury, the Federal Financing Bank, and BIF member banks.

The FDIC may adjust the assessment rate schedule twice a year without seeking prior public
comment, but only within a range of five cents per $100 above or below the premium schedule adopted.
The FDIC can make changes in the rate schedule outside the five-cent range above or below the current
schedule only after a full rulemaking with opportunity for public comment.

Expanding Enforcement Authority. One of the major additional impacts imposed by FDICIA is the
increased ability of banking regulators to monitor the activities of banks and their holding companies. The
Federal Reserve Board and FDIC have extensive authority to police unsafe or unsound practices and
violations of applicable laws and regulations by depository institutions and their holding companies. For
example, the FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any institution that it determines has engaged
in an unsafe or unsound practice. The agencies can also assess civil money penalties, issue cease and desist
or removal orders, seek injunctions, and publicly disclose such actions. FDICIA, FIRREA and other laws
have expanded the agencies’ authority in recent years, and the agencies have not yet fully tested the limits
of their powers.

Effect on Economic Environment. The policies of regulatory authorities, including the monetary
policy of the Federal Reserve Board, have a significant effect on the operating results of bank holding
companies and their subsidiaries. Among the means available to the Federal Reserve Board to affect the
money supply are open market operations in U.S. government securities, changes in the discount rate on
member bank borrowings and changes in reserve requirements against member bank deposits. These
means are used in varying combinations to influence overall growth and distribution of bank loans,
investments and deposits, and their use may affect interest rates charged on loans or paid for deposits.

Federal Reserve Board monetary policies have materially affected the operating results of commercial
banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. The nature of future monetary
policies and the effect of such policies on our business and earnings cannot be predicted.
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Consumer Laws and Regulations. Banks are also subject to certain consumer laws and regulations
that are designed to protect consumers in transactions with banks. Among the more prominent of such
laws and regulations are the Truth in Lending Act, the Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds
Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availability Act, the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Credit
Reporting Act, the Fair Housing Act and consumer privacy protection provisions of the Gramm-Leach-
Bliley. These laws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and regulate the manner in
which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits or making loans to such
customers. We must comply with the applicable provisions of these consumer protection laws and
regulations as part of our ongoing customer relations.

Employees

The Company had 961 full time equivalent employees as of December 31, 2004. None of our
employees are represented by collective bargaining agreements and the Company considers its employee
relations to be good. In January 2005, Sterling Bancshares was named for the third consecutive year as
one of the top 100 companies to work for in America by Fortune magazine.

Available Information

Under the Exchange Act, Sterling Bancshares is required to file annual, quarterly and current reports,
proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read a copy of any document we file with
the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please
call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the Public Reference Room. The SEC
maintains a web site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and
other information we file electronically with the SEC.

We make available, free of charge through our web site, our reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K,
and amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with the
SEC. Additionally, we have adopted and posted on our web site a Code of Ethics for Senior Financial
Officers that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and principal accounting
officer. Our web site also includes the charters for our Audit Committee and Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee, The address for our web site is http://www.banksterling.com. We will also
provide a printed copy of any of these aforementioned documents upon request.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located at 2550 North Loop West, Suite 600, Houston, Texas,
77092, in space leased by the Company. In addition to our principal office, we operate the following
locations:

Owned Leased Total

Banking offices in the Houston metropolitan area ............................ 14 11 25
Banking offices in the San Antonio metropolitan area ........................ 4 4 8
Banking offices in the Dallas metropolitan area.................cviiivrnoen. — 3 3
Loan production office. . ... . i e — | 1
Central department offices ... ... ... . i i e 1 2 3

Total .. 19 21 40

The Company has options to renew leases at most locations.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, the Coinpany is a party to various legal proceedings incident to its business.
Currently, neither Sterling Bancshares nor any of its subsidiaries is involved in any material legal
proceedings.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.

PART II

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

COMMON STOCK MARKET PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Our stock trades through The Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “SBIB.” The following
table sets forth the high and low closing stock prices of Sterling Bancshares’ common stock and the
dividends paid thereon for each quarter of the last two years.

Sales Price
Per Share
High Low Dividend
2004
Farst QUarteT .« .o e $14.22  $11.92  $0.050
SecOnd QUATTET . ..ottt e et 14.19 12.17 0.050
Third quarter ..............c.c ... P 1400 1230  0.050
Fourth quarter ............... [ R 15.00 13.02 0.050
2003 ' v
First qUarter .. ...t $12.89 $11.44  $0.045
Second qUArter .. ... e e 13.14 11.28 0.045
Third quarter ... .. 1400 °11.30 0.045
Fourth quarter ....... ... ... . . . 13.73 11.12 0.045

On January 31, 2005, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.06 per share
payable on February 26, 2005, to shareholders of record on February 12, 2005. We intend to continue to
pay a dividend at a minimum rate of $0.06 per share quarterly throughout 2005. We are not -able to
predict whether we will continue to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the future or the amount -
or frequency of any such dividend. The payment of future dividends is dependent on our future earnings,
capital requirements and financial condition.

For information on the ability of the Bank to pay dividends and make loans to Sterling Bancshares,
see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Financial
Condition — Interest Rate Sensitivity and Liquidity” and Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As of March 7, 2005, the Company estimates that there were 1,044 shareholders of record of
common stock. The number of beneficial shareholders is unknown to the Company at this time.
RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

As of November 7, 2004, the Company issued an aggregate of 20,000 shares of our common stock
upon the conversion of 20,000 shares of Series I Convertible Preferred Stock. The holders of the Series 1
Convertible Preferred Stock previously acquired such shares from the Company in a private transaction in
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2002. No additional consideration was due from or paid by the holders of the Series I Convertible
Preferred Stock. The common shares issued upon such conversion were not registered under the Securities
Act of 1933 because the exchange of the Series 1 Convertible Preferred Stock for the shares of common
stock was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 pursuant to Section 3(a)(9)
thereunder.

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data is derived from the Company’s audited
Consolidated Financial Statements. The selected consolidated financial data does not purport to be
complete and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified by, the more detailed information,
including the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” appearing elsewhere in this report.

During the periods indicated, we completed five acquisitions of bank holding companies and/or banks.
With respect to one acquisition completed during the reported periods which was accounted for using the
“pooling of interest” method, all financial data has been restated to include the acquired entity’s balance
sheet data and historical results of operation. On September 30, 2003, we sold our 80% interest in SCMC.
Accordingly, the operating results of SCMC are now reported together with the net gain realized on the
sale as discontinued operations. Please read “Risk Factors” beginning on page 39 for a discussion of
material uncertainties which might cause the selected consolidated financial data not to be indicative of
our future financial conditions or results of operations.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Dollars and shares in thousands, except for per share amounts)

INCOME STATEMENT DATA:

Net interest inCOME .. ..., $ 135384 ¢ 138,235 § 140,998 § 117,690 $ 100,951
Provision for credit losses ........... .. .. 12,250 17,698 11,700 11,684 9,668
Noninterest iNCOMmMe .. .....vit i i 30,922 33,270 29,792 24,791 19,926
NONIRIErest EXPeise . . v vt v vt iiie e e 119,609 111,416 110,190 99,359 76,115
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 34,447 42,391 48,900 31,438 35,094
Income from continuing operations ................. 24,963 28,354 33,183 21,308 24,534
Income from discontinued operations ............... — 20,756 3,368 9,093 3,006
NEtINCOmME . ..ottt it 24,963 49,110 36,551 30,401 27,540
BALANCE SHEET DATA (at period-end):
Total @ssets . ...t e $3,336,070 $3,206,880 $3,585,220 $2,779,868 $2,078,103
Totalloans ......c. .. 2,344.977 2,157,039  2,644862 1,928,293 1,484,990
Allowance for credit losses ......... ..ot 30,232 30,722 27,248 22,927 16,862
Total Securities . .........coiuitttiiiiiiiina 658,118 565,093 313,054 329,416 295,392
Trading assets . ... ...oovteiin 36,720 172,825 142,803 118,511 —
Total deposits ....... ..o 2,443967 2418369 2,673,072 2,268,980 1,718,822
Short-term borrowings ... ....... ... i 420,575 324,160 509,590 180,298 140,364
Notes payable .. ............ i i — — 21,430 20,879 1,600
Subordinated debt ........ ... ... ... L 47,162 46,533 — — —
Junior subordinated debt ........... ... ...l 82,475 82,475 82,475 59,278 29,639
Shareholders’ equity. . ... i 313,172 292,596 249,327 217,369 166,825
COMMON SHARE DATA:
Earnings per share from continuing operations(1)

Basic ... $ 0.56 % 0.64 §$ 076 $ 051 §$ 0.59

Diluted. . ... 0.535 0.64 0.74 0.50 0.58
Earnings per share from discontinued operations(1)

BasiC ... — 0.47 0.08 0.22 0.07

Diluted........ ... — 0.46 0.08 0.21 0.07
Earnings per share(1)

Basic ... 0.56 - 1.11 0.83 0.72 0.66

Diluted. ... ... 0.55 1.10 0.82 0.71 0.65
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Shares used in computing earnings per common share

Year Ended December 31,

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except for per share amounts)

Basic ... 44,839 44,180 43,872 42,180 41,596

Diluted..........oo i i 45,278 44,648 44,756 43,044 42212
End of period common shares outstanding ........... 45,068 44,642 43,983 43,770 41,728
Book value per common share at period-end

Total ... 6.95 6.55 5.65 496 3.98

Tangible. ... ... ... 5.52 5.09 4.34 3.77 3.96
Cash dividends paid per common share ............. 0.20 0.18 0.16 0.15 0.13
Common Stock dividend payout ratio ............... 3591% 16.19% 19.21% 19.41% 18.95%
SELECTED PERFORMANCE RATIOS AND

OTHER DATA:
Return on average common equity

Total ... . 8.23% 18.18% 15.48% 16.62% 17.94%

ContinUING. . .o vv i e 8.23% 10.50% 14.06% 11.65% 15.98%
Return on average assets

Total ... .. 0.78% 1.48% 1.21% 1.24% 1.32%

Continuing. .. ... 0.78% 0.86% 1.10% 0.87% 1.17%
Net interest margin .o . ... .c.oovineeneiinnnannan.. 4.65% 4.68% 5.32% 5.46% 5.39%
Efficiency ratio ......... ... ... o 71.92% 64.96% 64.52% 69.73% 62.97%
Fuli-time equivalent employees .................... 961 1,036 1,065 1,014 743
Number of banking offices .................... . ... 36 37 40 38 24
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RATIOS:
Average loans to average deposits .................. 89.32% 99.91% 92.74% 84.28% 83.34%
Period-end shareholders’ equity to total assets ........ 9.39% 9.12% 6.95% 7.82% 8.03%
Average shareholders’ equity to average assets........ 9.52% 8.16% 7.83% 7.49% 7.40%
Period-end tangible capital to total tangible assets. .. .. 7.61% 7.24% 6.04% 8.52% 7.98%
Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets................ 11.78% 12.30% 8.41% 9.64% 10.51%
Total capital to risk weighted assets................. 14.55% 15.40% 9.29% 10.66% 11.26%
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Tier 1 capital to total average

ASSELS) . e 10.15% 10.38% 7.81% 8.40% 9.10%
ASSET QUALITY RATIOS:
Period-end allowance for credit losses to period-end

Joans. . 1.29% 1.42% 1.03% 1.15% 1.14%
Net charge-offs to average loans ................. .. 0.58% 0.60% 0.37% 0.49% 0.51%
Period-end allowance for credit losses to nonperforming .

JOAMS . e 146.72% 90.66% 138.64% 161.51% 175.74%
Nonperforming assets to period-end loans and

foreclosed assets . ......... ... il 0.95% 1.68% 0.87% 0.85% 0.77%
Nonperforming loans to period-end loans ............ 0.88% 1.57% 0.74% 0.74% 0.65%
Nonperforming assets to period-end assets ........... 0.67% 1.13% 0.64% 0.58% 0.55%

(1) The calculation of diluted earning per share excludes 218,895, 620,431, 267,458, 295,616 and 278,553

shares issuable upon options for year 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, which were

antidilutive.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, other periodic reports filed by us under the Exchange Act, and

other written or oral statements made by or on behalf of the Company contain certain statements relating
to future events and our future results which constitute forward-looking statements under the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These “forward-looking statements” are typically identified by
words such as “expects, 7 plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” or words of

LI NTY LR INTS LEINT 33 &

anticipates,” “intends,
similar meaning, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” or “may.”
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Forward-looking statements reflect our expectation or predictions of future conditions, events or results
based upon information currently available and involve risks and uncertainties that may cause actual
results to differ materially from those in such statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not
limited to, the following:

« general business and economic conditions in the markets we serve may be less favorable than
anticipated which could decrease the demand for loan, deposit and other financial services and
increase loan delinquencies and defaults;

+ changes in market rates and prices may adversely impact the value of securities, loans, deposits and
other financial instruments and the interest rate sensitivity of our balance sheet;

» our liquidity requirements could be adversely affected by changes in our assets and liabilities;

» the effect of legislative or regulatory developments including changes in laws concerning taxes,
banking, securities, insurance and other aspects of the financial securities industry;

» competitive factors among financial services organizations, including product and pricing pressures
and our ability to attract, develop and retain qualified banking professionals;

» the effect of changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board and other regulatory agencies; and

« the effect of fiscal and governmental policies of the United States federal government.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. We do not undertake to update
forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date the forward-looking
statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events, such as market deterioration that
adversely affects credit quality and asset values. :

OVERVIEW

“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ analyzes
major elements of our Consolidated Financial Statements and provides insight into important areas of
management’s focus. This introduction highlights selected information in this report and may not contain
all of the information that is important to you. For a more complete understanding of trends, events,
commitments, liquidity, capital resources and critical accounting estimates, you should carefully read this
entire report. This section should also be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements
and related Notes included elsewhere in this report. :

Our success is-highly dependent on economic conditions and market interest rates. Because we
operate primarily in Houston, and to a lesser extent, in the Dallas and San Antonio metropolitan areas, the
local economic conditions of these areas are particularly important. The Houston and Texas economies
continued to improve during 2004 and we remain fairly optimistic that our internal growth and related
credit quality should steadily improve going forward. We are seeing improved results in our customer’s
financial condition, including increases in their backlogs and improved liquidity and profitability in their
financial statements. In addition, local economists are predicting that job growth in key sectors such as
energy and manufacturing should increase in Houston during 2005.

During the first half of 2004, we undertook a significant effort related to improving asset quality. With
subsequent overall asset quality improvements, we were able to further focus our efforts toward loan
growth, the further development of our new and existing customer base, as well as the redeployment of our
capital in the second half of 2004. '

During 2004, we implemented an expense management initiative whereby numerous expense
reduction and alignment projects were identified including the consolidation of smaller offices, disposition
of unprofitable initiatives, modification of certain perquisite benefit programs and continued reductions of
staffing levels through attrition. These projects are expected to reduce our non-interest expense base and
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allow for greater control of expense growth in 2005, As part of this initiative, we terminated two consulting
contracts and closed one unprofitable banking facility. These combined two initiatives are expected to save
approximately $1.4 million annually beginning in 2005.

We realize income primarily from the difference between interest earned on loans and investments
and the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. Each of these financial instruments reacts differently to
interest rates. During 2004, the Federal Reserve Bank increased overnight interest rates a total of 125 basis
points beginning in June 2004. Prior to these increases, interest rates were near 40-year lows. While we are
impacted significantly by the size and timing of short-term rate increases, as well as the shape of the yield
curve and other competitive factors, our balance sheet is generally positioned to benefit from a rising
interest rate environment. '

There are several factors impacting comparisons of our financial statements for 2004 to earlier years.
These factors should be kept in mind when considering our future prospects as well:

+ Sale of SCMC
« Divestitures of banking offices
+ Acquisition of Plaza Bank

During 2003 and 2004, we made several decisions designed to more clearly align our operations with
our long term vision and strategy. In 2003 we made the strategic decision to divest of SCMC in order to
better position us to focus our efforts on the commercial banking needs of small to mid-sized businesses.
We have used the net proceeds of the sale to support our ongoing internal growth. SCMC'’s operations
were reported previously as the Company’s mortgage-banking segment; which is reported together with the
net gain on sale as discontinued operations. Other areas of our financial statements affected by the sale of
SCMC are not as easily highlighted. As a banking operation, the Bank benefited by providing SCMC with
a warehouse line of credit which financed mortgage loans held for sale. Additionally, SCMC maintained
operating and escrow deposits with the Bank reducing the Bank’s other borrowing needs. Due to decisions
made by the buyer of SCMC, the Bank lost the benefit of these loans and deposit balances shortly after
completing the sale of SCMC in September 2003.

In 2004, we closed one of our banking offices and merged its operations into another location. We
retained substantially all of the loans and deposits associated with this location. In 2003, we sold five
banking offices acquired as part of previous acquisitions. These five banking offices were located in Eagle
Pass, Pearsall, Crystal City, Carrizo Springs and Highlands, Texas and were sold because their operations
and growth potential did not align with our business banking strategy of serving small and mid-sized
businesses in the major metropolitan areas.

Finally, acquisitions we made will not only affect comparisons with previous periods, but also our
future prospects. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the acquisition of South Texas Capital
Group, Inc. of San Antonio and its subsidiary bank, Plaza Bank.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

An understanding of our accounting policies is important to an understanding of our reported results.
Accounting policies are described in detail in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this
annual report.

Allowance for credit losses — The allowance for credit losses is a valuation allowance for probable
losses incurred on loans. Loans are charged to the allowance when the loss actually occurs or when a
determination is made that a probable loss has occurred. Recoveries are credited to the allowance at the
time of recovery. Throughout the year, management estimates the probable level of losses to determine
whether the allowance for credit losses is adequate to absorb losses in the existing portfolio. Based on these
estimates, an amount is charged to the provision for credit losses and credited to the allowance for credit
losses in order to adjust the allowance to a level determined to be adequate to absorb losses.
Management’s judgment as to the level of probable losses on existing loans involves the consideration of
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current economic conditions and their estimated effects on specific borrowers; an evaluation of the existing
relationships among loans, potential credit losses and the present level of the allowance; results of
examinations of the loan portfolio by regulatory agencies; and management’s internal review of the loan
portfolio. In determining the collectibility of certain loans, management also considers the fair value of any
underlying collateral. The amount ultimately realized may differ from the carrying value of these assets
because of economic, operating or other conditions beyond our control. Please refer to the subsequent
discussion of “Allowance for Credit Losses” below as well as in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional insight into management’s approach and methodology in estimating the
allowance for credit losses.

Stock-based Compensation — We account for stock-based employee compensation plans using the
intrinsic value-based method. Because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock options equals
the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized on
options granted. Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is based on the market price of the
stock on the date of grant and is recognized ratably over the vesting period of the award. We make pro-
forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share assuming the fair value-based accounting method
in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We expect ito adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123R “Share-Based Payment (Revised 2004),” on
July 1, 2005. Among other things, SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for stock-based
compensation using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting and requires that such transactions be
recognized as compensation expense in the income statement based on their fair values on the date of the
grant. SFAS 123R is effective on July 1, 2005. SFAS 123R will require that management make
assumptions related to our stock price volatility and employee turnover that are utilized to measure
compensation expense.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Performance Summary

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $25.0 million, or $0.55 per diluted share,
compared with $49.1 million, or $1.10 per diluted share earned for 2003 and $36.6 million, or $0.82 per
diluted share earned for 2002. Income from continuing operations was equal to reported net income in
2004, while income from continuing operations totaled $28.4 million, or $0.64 per diluted share for 2003
and $33.2 million, or $0.74 per diluted share for 2002,

Net income for 2003 and 2002 included discontinued operations related to the sale of SCMC which
was sold in 2003. Income from continuing operations for 2004 decreased $3.4 million compared to 2003.
This decrease was primarily due to decreases during 2004 in both net interest income and other income of
$2.8 million and $2.3 million, respectively, and an increase in total noninterest expense of $8.2 million.
These changes were offset by a decrease in the provision for credit losses of $5.4 million and lower
provision for income taxes of $4.6 million. Net income for 2004 included total after-tax net gains on the
sales of securities of $3.2 million, or $0.07 per diluted share, impairment charges on certain bank assets
totaling $2.3 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, net of taxes and contract termination charges of $764
thousand, or $0.02 per diluted share, net of taxes. We also reduced income tax expense during 2004 by
$1.2 million, or $0.03 per diluted share as a result of the expiration of previous tax contingencies and
refunds received.

Income from continuing operations for the 2003 period included after-tax net gains on the sales of
rural banking offices of $2.3 million, or $0.05 per diluted share. Income from continuing operations for
2003 decreased $4.8 million compared to 2002. This decrease was primarily due to decreases in net
interest income of $2.8 million, an increase in the provision for credit losses of $6.0 million, offset by an
increase in noninterest income of $3.5 million due primarily to the gain on sales of rural banking offices
discussed above.
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Two commonly used industry measures of a banking institution’s performance are return on average
assets and return on average common equity. Return on average assets (“ROA”) measures net income in
relation to average total assets and is an indicator of a company’s ability to employ its resources profitably.
For 2004, our ROA (from continuing operations) was 0.78%, as compared to 0.86% and 1.10% for 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Return on average common equity (“ROE”) measures net income in relation to average common
equity and is an indicator of a company’s return to its owners. For 2004, our ROE (from continuing
operations) was 8.23% compared to 10.50% and 14.06% for 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income represents the amount by which interest income on interest-earning assets,
including loans and securities, exceeds interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities, including deposits and
borrowings. Net interest income is our principal source of earnings. Interest rate fluctuations, as well as
changes in the amount and type of earning assets and liabilities, combine to affect net interest income.

The Federal Reserve Board significantly influences market interest rates, including rates offered for
loans and deposits by many financial institutions. Generally, when the Federal Reserve Board changes the
target overnight interest rate charged by banks, the market responds with a similar change in the prime
lending rate. Our loan portfolio is impacted significantly by changes in short-term interest rates. During the
fourth quarter of 2002, the Federal Reserve Board decreased overnight interest rates by 50 basis points
from 1.75% to 1.25%. During the second quarter of 2003, overnight interest rates decreased an additional
25 basis points to 1.00%. During this period, market interest rates were near 40-year lows. This extended
period of declining and then low interest rates negatively impacted our net interest margin and net interest
income during these periods.

Beginning in June 2004 the Federal Reserve Board began increasing overnight interest rates for a
combined increase of 125 basis points to a Fed Funds target rate of 2.25% at December 31, 2004. Since
our balance sheet is asset sensitive, our interest-earning assets generally reprice more quickly than the
interest-bearing liabilities. Our net interest margin began to improve during the second half of 2004
following these increases in interest rates.

Net interest income for 2004 was $135.4 million, down $2.9 million or 2.1% from $138.2 million for
2003. Interest income decreased $5.3 million due to a decrease in average interest-earning assets and a
nine basis point decrease in the average yield earned on interest-earning assets. This was partially offset by
a decrease in interest expense of $2.4 million compared to 2003, resulting from a decrease in average
interest-bearing liabilities and a decrease in average yield paid on interest-bearing liabilities of six basis
points. Net interest income and margin were primarily impacted by the sale of SCMC and the changes in
interest rates as discussed above. During 2003, net interest income decreased $2.8 million or 2.0% from
$141.0 million earned for 2002. This decrease was primarily attributable to the decrease in yields on loans,
securities and deposits due to decreases in interest rates discussed above offset by increases in volumes.

Average interest-earning assets decreased $44.4 million or 1.5% in 2004 compared to 2003. The
average vield earned on interest-earning assets decreased nine basis points in 2004 compared to 2003.
These decreases resulted in part from a decrease in average loans held for sale of $431.0 million compared
to 2003. Average loans held for sale for 2003 included $432.7 million related to the mortgage warehouse
we financed for our mortgage-banking operation. On September 30, 2003, we completed the sale of our
mortgage-banking operations and we lost the benefit of the mortgage warehouse shortly after completing
the sale when the buyer decided to pay off this credit facility. The decrease in interest income resulting
from lower loan volumes was offset somewhat by additional investments in investment securities with lower
yields than that of the mortgage warehouse.

Average interest-earning assets increased $307.0 million or 11.6% during 2003 compared to 2002.
These increases were primarily due to growth in loans held for investment which increased on average
$233.6 million and an increase in average investments on securities of $36.2 million. The average yield on
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interest-earning assets decreased 95 basis points from 6.75% in 2002 to 5.80% in 2003 due to combined
overnight interest rate reductions of 75 basis points during 2002 and 2003 as discussed above.

Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2003 and continuing throughout 2004, we increased the size of the
investment portfolio for balance sheet liquidity purposes and to replace a portion of the earning assets
related to our mortgage-banking operation. On average, the securities portfolio was higher by
$240.8 million or 69.9% for 2004 compared to 2003 and $36.2 million or 11.7% for 2003 as compared with
2002. As mentioned above, the average yields on these securities were less than the yield previously earned
on the mortgage warehouse credit facility. During the second quarter of 2004, we sold our lower yielding
U.S. Treasury securities. These funds were redeployed into higher yielding mortgage-backed securities with
a profile similar ito those in the existing investment portfolio during the third quarter of 2004,

Average interest-bearing liabilities for 2004 were $2.0 billion, a decrease of $70.9 million or 3.4%
compared to 2003. The average balance of short-term borrowings and notes payable decreased
$136.2 million or 33.1% compared to 2003. We repaid certain borrowings and notes payable immediately
after the sale of our mortgage-banking operations in 2003. Average interest-bearing liabilities for 2003 were
$2.1 billion, an increase of $190.0 million or 10.0% compared to 2002. The cost of interest-bearing
liabilities decreased six basis points from 1.58% for 2003 to 1.52% for 2004 and 41 basis points during 2003
compared to 1.99% for 2002. The decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing deposits for both periods
was due primarily to decreases in market interest rates mentioned above. The decrease in the average cost
of interest-bearing liabilities helped offset the impact of declining yields on interest-earning assets.
Competitive pressures often limit our ability to reduce rates on deposits by the same amount as that of
loans during periods of declining rates.

Our net intérest margin was 4.65% for 2004 compared to 4.68% for 2003 and 5.32% for 2002. The
decrease of three basis points from 2004 to 2003 was primarily attributable to the payoff of the higher
yielding mortgage warehouse credit facility and declines in market interest rates that occurred prior to
2004. These declines were partially offset by increases in overnight interest rates during the last half of
2004. Overall, the net interest margin decreased 64 basis points from 2003 to 2002.

Certain average balances, together with the total dollar amounts of interest income and expense and
the average interest yield/rates are included below. No tax equivalent or day count adjustments were made

(dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Average Average Average
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
Interest-earning assets:
Loans held for sale(1) .......... $ 10,340 $§ 727 7.03% $ 441,377 $ 23965 543% $ 407,055 $ 27,660 6.80%
Loans held for investment(1):
Taxable ..................... 2,176,445 137,039  6.30% 2,019,903 130,102 6.44% 1,785,490 128,935 7.22%
Non-taxable ................. 4,021 257 6.39% 4,558 291  6.38% 5,330 307 5.76%
Securities:
Taxable ..................... 536,793 21,307  3.97% 293,198 10,947 3.73% 242,004 13,957 5.77%
Non-taxable ................. . 48,791 2,042 4.19% 51,560 2,266 4.3%% 66,509 2,890 4.35%
Trading assets..... e 124,272 4,569 3.68% 125,722 3567 2.84% 114,752 4,540 3.96%
Federal funds sold ...... U 8,728 101 1.16% 17,763 176 0.99% 25,326 463 1.83%
Deposits in financial linstitutions.. . . 1,672 55 3:_2§% 1,392 69 ﬂ% 1,960 106 iﬂ%
Total interest-earning assets .... 2,911,062 166,097 35.71% 2,955,473 171,383 5.80% 2,648426 178,858 6.75%
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Noninterest earning assets:

Cash and due from banks........
Premises and equipment, net
Other assets ...................
Allowance for credit losses .......

Assets related to discontinued
OPErations ............cuennnn

Total noninterest earning assets

Total assets . .................

Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:

Demand and savings

Certificates and other time . . . ..
Short-term borrowings...........
Notes payable..................
Subordinated debt ..............
Junior subordinated debt.........

Total interest-bearing liabilities
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits ...............
Other liabilities. .. ..............

Liabilities related to discontinued
Operations . ..................

Total noninterest-bearing
liabilities ..................

Net interest income and margin(2)

(1) For the purpose of calculating loan yields, average loan balances include nonaccrual loans with no related interest income.

Year Ended December 31,

$135,384 $138,235  4.68% $140,998

(2) The net interest margin is equal to net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
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2004 2003 2002
' Average Average Average
Average Yield/  Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Balance Interest Rate Balance Intérest Rate Balance Interest Rate
100,292 99,902 97,404
45,284 48,163 51,879
162,289 204,690 - 205,660
(28,879) (30,584) (25,056)
- = 35836 24315
278,986 357,807 374,202
$3,190,048 $3,313,280 $3,022,628
$ 961,059 $ 4785 0.50% $ 898,377 $ 4,752 0.53% $ 887,544 $ 8,541 0.96%
655,488 12,694  1.94% 664,923 14,608 2.20% 638,048 17,479 2.74%
275,045 4,163  1.51% 392,548 4921 1.25% 284,965 4946 1.74%
— — — 18,667 585 . 3.13% . 20,985 797 3.80%
46,647 2,640  5.66% 34,649 1,903 5.49% — - —
82,475 6,431  7.80% 82,475 6,379 7.13% 70,087 6,097  8.70%
2,020,714 30,713 1.52% 2,091,639 33,148 1.58% 1,901,629 37,860  1.99%
836,258 904,711 844,401
29,452 21,167 15,355°
- 25,342 24574
865,710 951,220 884,330
303,624 270,421 236,669
$3,190,048 $3,313,280 $3,022,628
4.65% 5.32%




The following rate/volume analysis shows the portions of the net change in interest income and
expense due to changes in volume or rate. The changes in interest income due to both rate and volume in
the analysis have been allocated proportionately to the volume or rate changes (in thousands):

2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Due to Changes in: Due to Changes in:
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total

Interest-earning assets:
Loans held forsale ............... $(28,680) $ 5,442  $(23,238) §$ 2,332 $ (6,027) $(3,695)
Loans held for investment:

Taxable .................... ... 9,894 (2,957) 6,937 16,928 (15,761) 1,167

Non-taxable ................... (34) — (34) (44) 28 (16)
Securities:

Taxable ............. ... ... ... 9,629 731 10,360 2,952 (5,962)  (3,010)

Non-taxable ................... (119) (105) (224) (650) 26 (624)
Trading assets . ..........c.c...... (42) 1,044 1,002 434 (1,407) (973)
Federal funds sold ................ (100) 25 (75) (138) (149) (287)
Deposits in financial institutions. . . .. 12 (26) (14) (31) (6) (37)
Total interest income.............. (9,440) 4,154 (5,286) 21,783 (29,258)  (7,475)
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:

Demand and savings .......... 320 (287) 33 104 (3,893)  (3,789)
Certificates and other time . .. .. (278)  (1,636) (1,914) 736 (3,607)  (2,871)

Short-term borrowings............. (1,650) 892 (758) 1,867 (1,892) (25)
Notes payable .................... (585) — (585) (88) (124) (212)
Subordinated debt . ............... 678 59 737 1,903 — 1,903
Junior subordinated debt........... — 52 52 — 282 282
Total interest expense ............. (1,515) (920} (2,435) 4,522 (9,234) (4,712)
Net interest income .. ............. $ (7,925) $ 5074 $ (2,851) $17,261  $(20,024) $(2,763)

Noninterest Income

Noninterest income consisted of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
CUSTOMET SETVICE fEES . . . oottt et e et $14,536 $16,214 $16,893
Net gain (loss) on the sale of banking offices................. (27) 3,517 —_
Bank-owned life insurance income .......... ..., 2,017 2,010 2,084
Debit card fees . ... . 1,588 1,451 1,327
Net gain (loss) on trading assets ............c.covvuriveennn.. (452) 1,186 1,018
Net gain on the sale of securities ........................... 4,941 905 110
Other ... o 8,319 7,987 8,360
Total . . e $30,922  $33,270  $29,792

Customer service fees for 2004 decreased $1.7 million or 10.3% compared to 2003 while customer
service fees for 2003 decreased $679 thousand or 4.0% compared to 2002. Customer service fees decreased
due in large part to the sale of banking offices in 2003. These rural offices had a more retail customer base
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and their location and growth potential did not align with our metropolitan business banking strategy.
Additionally, insufficient fund fees decreased during 2004 due in part to improvements in asset quality
wherein certain marginal relationships exited the Bank.

During 2003, our net gain on the sale of four banking offices was $3.5 million. During 2004, we closed
one banking offices and merged its operations into another location. The bank building and related fixtures
were sold for a pre-tax loss of $27 thousand. We retained substantially all of the loans and deposits
associated with this location.

Losses on trading assets in 2004 were attributable to declines in the fair market value of these assets
and a decrease in trading activity resulting from current market conditions and a change in governmental
regulations. Trading assets are carried at fair market value in our consolidated balance sheets. Gains on
trading assets did not significantly fluctuate in 2003 compared to 2002,

Net gain on the sale of securities increased $4.0 million for 2004 compared to 2003. These gains were
primarily the result of two separate securitization transactions during 2004 in which we sold $75.6 million
of certain interest-only securities held in our available-for-sale portfolio. We received proceeds of
$83.9 million which resulted in net gains totaling $5.2 million during 2004. The Company did not retain
any interests in these securities and neither the investors in the securitization trusts nor the trusts have any
recourse other than for a breach of customary representations as to ownership and origination, but not for
credit loss or default. These gains were offset by a realized loss of $853 thousand for the sale of lower
yielding U.S. Treasury Securities during the second quarter of 2004. Net gains on securities transactions in
2003 and 2002 were not significant and were the result of routine portfolio management activities in the
securities portfolio.

Noninterest Expense

The following table shows the detail of noninterest expense (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

Salaries and employee benefits .......................... $ 68,272 $ 65,525 § 63,430
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE . « o v v vttt e e iee et ne e 15,326 15,364 15,181
Technology. ... ... i 6,127 5,170 5,046
Professional fees ............ ... 6,999 4,624 4,205
Postage, delivery and supplies ........... ...t 3,179 3,474 3,690
Marketing. . ... e 1,457 1,498 566
Core deposit intangible amortization ..................... 487 465 426
Net losses (gains) and carrying costs of other real estate and

foreclosed property ......... . . 31 (541) 481
Other ... 17,793 15,837 17,165
Total .. $119,609 §$l11,416  $110,190

During 2004, we took various steps to reduce our overall expense base and control the growth of
future expenses. After a review by management and employees, numerous expense reduction and
alignment projects were identified, including the consolidation of smaller offices, disposition of unprofitable
initiatives, modification of certain perquisite benefit programs and continued reductions in staffing levels
through attrition, These projects are expected to help reduce our current noninterest expense base and
allow for greater control of expense growth in 20085.

Salaries and employee benefits for 2004 increased of $2.7 million or 4.2% compared to 2003, and
$2.1 million or 3.3% for 2003 compared to 2002. These increases were primarily related to increased
staffing levels, merit-based and market-driven salary increases and increases in incentive pay and profit
sharing. Staffing levels increased in large part due to the three new offices we obtained in the Plaza Bank
acquisition which occurred on October 31, 2003. We had 961 full-time equivalent employees at
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December 31, 2004 compared with 1,036 at December 31, 2003 and 1,065 at December 31, 2002. The
full-time equivalent employee count decreased during the latter part of 2004 due in large part to the
expense management initiative previously mentioned.

Technology eipense increased $957 thousand or 18.5% for 2004 compared to 2003 while technology
expense for 2003 remained consistent compared to 2002 with a slight increase of $124 thousand or 2.5%.
The increase in 2004 was due primarily to the costs of upgrading our computer systems.

Professional fees increased $2.4 million or 51.4% for 2004 compared to 2003 and $419 thousand or
10.0% for 2003 compared to 2002. The increase during 2004 was due in large part to charges of
$1.2 million related to the termination of certain consulting agreements coupled with various legal, audit
and consulting fees totaling approximately $720 thousand in connection with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance.
The increase in 2003 was primarily attributable to consulting fees of $759 thousand related to various
analysis and operations overviews of SCMC prior to the announced sale.

Marketing expense decreased slightly for 2004 compared to 2003. Marketing expense increased $932
thousand or 164.7% in 2003 compared to 2002. We increased our marketing and branding efforts through
increased television, print and radio advertising in 2003.

Other noninterest expenses totaled $17.8 million for 2004, an increase of $2.0 million or 12.4% over
2003. Other noninterest expense decreased $1.3 million or 7.7% for 2003 compared to 2002. The increase
during 2004 was primarily due to impairment charges of $1.4 million related to one bank office building
and two tracts of unused land and losses incurred on the write-off of certain purchased lease interests
totaling $1.1 million. In 2002, we recorded $1.4 million of non-cash expenses related to the early
redemption of trust preferred securities in November 2002.

Income Taxes

We provided $9.5 million for federal income taxes for 2004, $39.1 million for 2003 and $18.1 million
for 2002. The effective tax rates for 2004, 2003, and 2002 were 27.5%, 44.3%, and 33.1%, respectively.
During the fourth quarter of 2004, we reduced income tax expense by $1.2 million which resulted in a
significantly lower effective tax rate for 2004 compared with 2003. This reduction was the result of the
expiration of previous tax contingencies and refunds received, including the filing of various state and
federal tax returns related to our mortgage-banking segment. Our provision for taxes and our effective tax
rate increased during 2003 primarily because of a tax election we made pursuant to Section 338(h) (10) of
the Internal Revenue Code as part of the sale of SCMC.

On a continuing operations basis, our effective tax rates for 2004, 2003, and 2002 were 27.5%, 33.1%,
and 32.1%, respectively.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Loans Held for Investment

The following table summarizes our loan portfolio by type as of December 31 of the year mdlcated
excluding loans held for sale (dollars in thousands): :

2004 - 2003 20 2001 2000

Amount % Amount % Amount %  Amount % Amount %

Commercial and : : i i i

industrial ......... $ 682,209 29.2% $ 671,482 31.5% $ 615094 31.7% $ 511,001 30.6% $ 473,035 35.2%
Real estate: : )

Commercial ....... 1,015,114 43.4% 829,199 38.9% 670,459 34.5% 560,982 33.7% 467,901 34.7%

Construction. ... ... 363,044 15.5% 327,295  15.4% 323768 16.7% 250,729  15.0% 115,588  8.6%

Residential . ....... 179,623  7.7% 195,363  9.2% 199,191 - 10.2% 187,196 11.2% 155,153 11.5%
Consumer/other ..... 72,997  3.1% 98,928  4.6% 122,616  6.3% 149,286  9.0% 129,358  9.6%
Foreign loans ........ 25,109 1.1% 8,464 0.4% 12,433 0.6% 7,594  0.5% 4807 0.4%
Total ............... $2,338,096 100.0% $2,130,731 100.0% $1,943,561 100.0% $1,666,788 100.0% $1,345,842 100.0%

At December 31, 2004, loans held for investment were $2.3 billion, an increase of $207.4 million or
9.7% over loans held for investment at December 31, 2003. This increase was primarily related to growth
in the commercial real estate loan category. Our primary lending focus is commercial and industrial loans
and owner-occupied real estate loans to businesses with annual sales ranging from $300 thousand to
$30 million. Typically, our customers have financing requirements between $50 thousand and $4 million.
The Bank’s legal lending limit was $20 million at December 31, 2004 and was not exceeded by any single -
loan relationship.

We make commercial loans primarily to small and mid-sized businesses and to professionals. Our
commercial loan products include revolving lines of credit, letters of credit, working capital loans, loans to
finance accounts receivable and inventory and equipment finance leases. Commercial loans typically have
floating rates of interest and are for varying terms (generally not exceeding three years). In most instances,
these loans are personally guaranteed by the business owner and are secured by accounts receivable,
inventory and/or other business assets. In addition to the commercial loans secured solely by non-real
estate business assets, we make commercial loans that are secured by owner-occupied real estate, as well
as other business assets.

Commercial mortgage loans are often secured by first liens on real estate, typically have floating
interest rates, and are most often amortized over a 15-year period with balloon payments due at the end of
three years. In underwriting commercial mortgage loans, we give consideration to the property’s operating
history, future operating projections, current and projected occupancy, location and physical condition. The
underwriting analysis also includes credit checks, appraisals and a review of the financial condition of the
borrower.

QOur wholesale real estate funding department, formed in late 2003, enhances our strategic goals by
originating co-originating, or purchasing first-lien, commercial real estate mortgage loans referred by other
financial institutions nationwide. The nationwide credit exposure permits us to diversify our loan portfolio
geographically, while supplementing growth in our niche market segment, small to medium-sized
businesses. These loans generally have low loan-to-value ratios below 60%, and over 58% of the portfolio
has a U.S. Small Business Administration second lien loan behind our first lien. We utilize real estate
appraisers familiar with the geographic region in which the property is located in evaluating potential
loans. Additionally, these appraisals are reviewed by a third-party appraisal review vendor for accuracy and
compliance with bank standards and regulations. More than 80% of these loans have variable interest rates
and amortize over twenty, or twenty-five years.

At December 31, 2004, commercial and industrial loans and commercial real estate loans were 29.2%
and 43.4%, respectively, of loans held for investment.
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We also make loans to finance the construction of residential and, to a lesser extent, nonresidential
properties, such as churches. Generally, construction loans are secured by first liens on real estate and have
floating interest rates. The Bank conducts periodic inspections, either directly or through an architect or
other agent, prior to approval of periodic draws on these loans. Underwriting guidelines similar to those
described above are also used in our construction lending activities.

The Bank makes automobile, boat, home improvement and other loans to consumers. These loans are
primarily made to customers who have other business relationships with us.

Loan maturities and rate sensitivity of the total loan portfolio excluding residential real estate-
mortgage and consumer loans at December 31, 2004 were as follows (in thousands):

Due After
One Year
Due in One Through Five Due After
Year or Less Years Five Years Total
Commercial and industrial .............. $ 526,554 $145,439 $ 10,216 $ 682,209
Real estate — commercial ............... 708,463 251,227 55,424 1,015,114
Real estate — construction .............. 302,414 47,932 12,698 363,044
Foreignloans.......................... 10,041 15,068 — 25,109
Totalloans........... ... . ... ... ..., $1,547,472 $459,666 $ 78,338  $2,085,476
Loans with a fixed interest rate........... $ 220,675 $436,731 $ 74,487 $ 731,893
Loans with a floating interest rate ........ 1,326,797 22,935 3,851 1,353,583
Total loans.................... e $1,547,472 $459,666 $ 78,338  $2,085,476

As of December 31, 2004, there was no concentration of loans to any one industry exceeding 10% of
total loans nor were there any loans classified as highly leveraged transactions. The Bank had no material
foreign loans outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2000 through 2004,

Loans held for investment were 95.7% of deposits and 70.1% of total assets at December 31, 2004. At
December 31, 2003, loans held for investment were 88.1% of deposits and 66.5% of total assets.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale totaled $6.9 million at December 31, 2004, as compared with $26.3 million at
December 31, 2003. Loans held for sale at December 31, 2003 included certain purchased commercial real
¢state loans and the guaranteed portion of SBA loans originated by the Bank. Beginning in 2004, we no
longer considered purchased commercial real estate loans as held for sale. Due to the timing of the sales
of SBA loans to investors, the balance of loans in the held for sale category at any given time may be
somewhat volatile.
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Securities

The carrying amount of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities we held at December 3! is
shown below (dollars in thousands).

2004 2003 2002
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Available-for-Sale
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other

U.S. government agencies.............. $ 8,194 1.5% $ 86,108 16.5% $ 39,388 15.7%
Obligations of states of the U.S. and

political subdivisions .................. 4,133 0.8% 4,433 0.8% 4,695 1.9%
Mortgage-backed securities and

collateralized mortgage obligations. . ..... 516,325 95.5% 398,774 76.3% 183,799 73.1%
Other securities ..............coivn.. 12,052 2.2% 33,621 6.4% 23,283 9.3%
Total ... $540,704  100.0% $522,936 100.0% $251,165 100.0%
Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of states of the U.S. and

political subdivisions .................. $ 61,956 528% $ 38,336 90.9% $ 56,128 90.7%
Mortgage-backed securities and

collateralized mortgage obligations....... 55,458 47.2% 3,821 9.1% 5,761 9.3%
Total ... $117,414 100.0% $ 42,157 100.0% $ 61,889 100.0%

At December 31, 2004, securities totaled $658.1 million, an increase of $93.0 million, or 16.5% from
$565.1 million at December 31, 2003. These securities represented 19.7% and 17.6% of total assets as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. During the fourth quarter of 2003 and continuing through
2004, we increased the size of the securities portfolio in an effort to rebalance liquidity and redeploy
earning assets subsequent to the sale of SCMC. During 2004, we sold our lower yielding treasury securities
and redeployed these funds into higher yielding mortgage-backed securities with a profile similar to those
in the existing investment portfolio.
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The carrying amount of securities at December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity is shown below
(dollars in thousands):

Due in one Due after one year Due after five years Due after
year or less through five years through ten years ten years
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Total
Available-for-Sale
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other
U.S. government agencies............. $ 5659 209% $ 2,535 3.09% $§ — - - — $ 8,194
Obligations of states of the U.S. and
political subdivisions ................. 853  3.64% 1,944  6.19% 1,336  6.36% — — 4,133
Mortgage-backed isecurities and 1
collateralized mortgage obligations . . ... 9,715 2.77% 228,693  4.09% 193,973 4.00% 83,944 4.31% 516,325
Other securities ....................... 12,052 6.69% - = - - - - 12,052
$28,279 4.33% $233,172 4.10% $195,309 4.02% $83,944  431% $540,704
Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of states of the U.S. and
political subdivisions ................. $ 6,512  5.07% $ 24906 6.55% $ 30,538 5.02% — —  $ 61,956
Mortgage-backed securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations ... .. 1,948 2.95% 1,164 4.25% 987 iﬁ% 51,359 ﬂ% 55,458

$ 8,460 .58% $ 26,070 45% $ 31,525  5.00% $51,359 4.90% 3$117,414

The yield on the Bank’s securities portfolio at December 31, 2004 was 4.07%. The weighted-average
life of the portfolio was approximately 5.9 years and the modified duration was approximately 3.0 years.
The yield on the securities portfolio at December 31, 2003 was 3.78%. At December 31, 2003, the
weighted-average life of the portfolio was approximately 5.3 years and the modified duration was
approximately 3.2 years.

We did not own the securities of any one issuer (other than the U.S. government and its agencies) of
which the aggregate adjusted cost exceeded 10% of consolidated shareholders’ equity at December 31,
2004.

Deposits

Our lending and investing activities are funded primarily by deposits, approximately 84% of which
were core deposits at December 31, 2004. Core deposits exclude brokered deposits and time deposits over
$100,000. These “jumbo” deposits are characteristically more sensitive to changes in interest rates and,
thus we do not consider these a part of our core funding.

Noninterest-bearing deposits at December 31, 2004 were $884.0 million as compared to $834.3 mil-
lion at December 31, 2003, an increase of $49.7 million or 6.0%. Approximately 36.2% of deposits at
December 31, 2004 were noninterest-bearing, a ratio above many of our industry peers.
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The average balances and weighted average rates paid on deposits for each of the past three years
ended December 31 are presented below (dollars in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

Average Average Average Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Noninterest bearing demand deposits .... $ 836,258 ' $ 904,711 $ 844,401
Interest bearing demand and savings

deposits ... 961,059  0.50% 898,377 0.53% 887,544 0.96%

Time deposits .........coouiieiin... 554,664 1.99% 577,090  2.27% 603,155 2.74%
Brokered deposits ... .................. 100,824 1.65% 87,833 171% _ 34,893 2.74%
Total deposits .. ...................... $2,452,805 1.08% $2,468,011 1.24% $2,369,993 1.71%

During 2004, average total deposits decreased $15.2 million in 2004 compared to 2003 while average
deposits increased $98.0 million in 2003 compared to 2002. The decrease in 2004 was attributable in part
to the sale of banking offices during 2003. Additionally, subsequent to the sale of SCMC, we lost the
benefit of certain deposit balances related to our mortgage-banking operation. These decreases were
partially offset by an increase in brokered deposits during 2004. The increases during 2003 were primarily
attributable to internal deposit growth and acquisitions completed during 2003. The changes in deposit mix
and interest rates reduced the average cost of funds for deposits by 16 basis points in 2004 when compared
to 2003 and 47 basis points in 2003 when compared to 2002. These decreases in deposit costs slightly
offset the impact of declining yields on earning assets during the same period.

Average brokered certificates of deposit totaled $100.8 million in 2004, $87.8 million in 2003 and
$34.9 million in 2002. We utilize brokered deposits in conjunction with short-term borrowings as a source
of funding for the Bank’s lending and investment activities.

The maturities of time deposits of $100 thousand or more at December 31, 2004 are shown below (in
thousands): :

2004
Three Months or 1888 .. ..ttt e e e e $182,693
Over three through six months . ... .. ... . .. .. . 89,778
Over six through twelve months ....... ... .. . . 57,296
Thereafter ................... e 62,340
$392,107

Short-Term Borrowings

Deposits are the primary source of funds for our lending, investment and general business activities.
Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) advances are available to us under a security and pledge agreement.
At December 31, 2004, we had total funds of $703.8 million available under this agreement of which
$418.0 million was outstanding. We also had other credit facilities available to us at December 31, 2004
through various correspondent banking and dealer relationships.
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Details of short-term borrowings are as follows (dollars in thousands):
For the Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Balance outstanding at period-end ..................... $418,000 $311,735  $490,790
Weighted average interest rate at period-end ............ 2.23% 1.06% 1.30%
Maximum outstanding at any month-end ............... $418,000 $642,500  $490,790
Daily average balance........... ... .. ... ... ... 251,188 365,390 251,410
Weighted average interest rate for the period ............ 1.50% 1.24% 1.77%
Federal funds purchased
Balance outstanding at peried-end ..................... $ 2,575 §$ 12425 $ 18,800
Weighted average interest rate at period-end ............ 2.31% 1.31% 1.75%
Maximum outstanding at any month-end ............... $ 25,750 $ 45,800 $ 18,800
Daily average balance............... ... ... oo 23,693 27,158 19,996
Weighted average interest rate for the period ............ 1.69% 1.61% 2.10%
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Balance outstanding at period-end ..................... $ — 3 — 8 —
Weighted average interest rate at period-end ............ — — —
Maximum outstanding at any month-end ............... $ — 3 —  $19,79
Daily average balance. . .......... ... ..l — — 13,559
Weighted average interest rate for the period ............ — — 0.96%

At December 31, 2004, borrowings under FHLB advances totaled $418.0 million and had maturities
between three days to two weeks. The average interest rate on these borrowings was 2.23% at
December 31, 2004, These borrowings are collateralized by single family residential mortgage loans, certain
pledged-securities, FHLB stock and any funds on deposit with the FHLB. The Company utilizes these
borrowings to meet liquidity needs. Maturing advances are replaced by drawing on available cash, making
additional borrowings or through increased customer deposits.

Notes Payable

We did not have any borrowings under our credit facility with Wells Fargo Bank at December 31,
2004. All outstanding indebtedness with Wells Fargo was fully repaid during 2003. Sterling Bancshares
maintains a $20 million line of credit with Welis Fargo Bank. This line of credit is available for general
corporate purposes including the funding of potential acquisitions. The credit facility contains certain
restrictive loan covenants, including, among others, covenants limiting Sterling Bancshares’ ability to merge
with another entity, make any substantial changes in the nature of its business, dispose of a substantial or
material amount of assets other than in the grdinary course of business, guarantee obligations of third
parties, make loans or investments in any third party in excess of $15 million, pledge its assets and pay
dividends or repurchase stock during any fiscal year in an aggregate amount in excess of ten percent of the
Bank’s equity capital as reflected in its regulatory report of financial condition for the end of the prior
fiscal year.

Subordinated Debt

In April 2003, the Bank raised approximately $50 million through a private offering of subordinated
notes. These subordinated notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.375% and mature on April 15, 2013.
Interest payments are due semi-annually. The subordinated notes may not be redeemed or called prior to
their maturity. In June 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement in which the Bank swapped
the fixed rate to a floating rate. Under the terms of the swap agreement, we receive a fixed coupon rate of
7.375% and pay a variable interest rate equal to the three-month LIBOR that is reset on a quarterly basis,
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plus 3.62%. This swap is designated as a fair-value hedge that qualifies for the “shortcut method” of
accounting. Changes in the fair value of both the swap and the hedged subordinated debt are reflected in
our statements of income. However, the impact of these changes in fair value fully offset each other
because of this hedge is considered effective. The swap’s floating rate on December 31, 2004 was 5.69%.

Junior Subordinated Debt/Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Trust Preferred Securities

On January 1, 2004, we adopted FIN 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. Upon
adoption, the trusts that previously issued the outstanding company-obligated mandatorily redeemable trust
preferred securities were deconsolidated from our Consolidated Financial Statements. Instead, the junior
subordinated debentures issued by the Company to these subsidiary trusts are shown as liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets and interest expense associated with the junior subordinated debentures are
shown in the consolidated statements of income.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, we had the following issues of trust preferred securities
outstanding and junior subordinated debt owed to trusts {dollars in thousands):

Trust Preferred Junior Subordinated
Securities Debt Owed To
Description Issuance Date Outstanding Interest Rate Trusts Final Maturity Date
Capital Trust 11 March 21, 2001 $28,750 9.20% Fixed $29,639 March 21, 2031
Statutory Trust One August 30, 2002 20,000 3-month LIBOR plus 3.45% 20,619 August 30, 2032
Capital Trust I11 September 26, 2002 31,250 8.30% Fixed 32,217 September 26, 2032
Total $80,000 $82,475

Each of the trusts is a statutory business trust organized for the sole purpose of issuing trust securities
and investing the proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentures of Sterling Bancshares, the sole asset
of each trust. The preferred trust securities of each trust represent preferred beneficial interests in the
assets of the respective trusts and are subject to mandatory redemption upon payment of the junior
subordinated debentures held by the trust. The common securities of each trust are wholly-owned by
Sterling Bancshares. Each trust’s ability to pay amounts due on the trust preferred securities is solely
dependent upon Sterling Bancshares making payment on the related junior subordinated debentures.
Sterling Bancshares’ obligations under the junior subordinated debentures and other relevant trust
agreements, in aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by Sterling Bancshares of each
respective trust’s obligations under the trust securities issued by each respective trust.

On March 1, 2005, the Federal Reserve adopted final rules for the capital treatment of trust preferred
securities. The rules, as applicable to us, limit the aggregate amount of trust preferred securities and
certain other capital elements to 25% of Tier 1 capital, net of goodwill. At December 31, 2004
approximately $62.2 million of the $82.5 million of trust preferred securities would count as Tier | capital.
The excess amount of trust preferred securities not qualifying for Tier 1 capital may be included in Tier 2
capital. This amount is limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. There is a five-year transition period for banks to
become compliant with the new rules. Additionally, the rules provide that trust preferred securities no
longer qualify for Tier 1 capital within 5 years of their maturity. Refer to Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of the impact of the final rule on our regulatory capital ratios.

After completing our latest issuance of trust preferred securities in 2002, we used the proceeds to
prepay the 9.28% Junior Subordinated Debentures issued in June 1997. Upon our prepayment, the 9.28%
Trust Preferred Securities outstanding were mandatorily redeemed. This effectively lowered our overall
borrowing costs. During 2002, we recorded a $1.4 million non-cash charge associated with the early
redemption of these securities.
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ASSET QUALITY
Risk Elements

Our nonperforming and past due loans are substantially collateralized by assets, with any excess of
loan balances over collateral values specifically allocated in the allowance for credit losses. On an ongoing
basis, we receive updated appraisals on loans secured by real estate, particularly those categorized as
nonperforming loans and potential problem loans. In those instances where updated appraisals reflect
reduced collateral values, an evaluation of the borrower’s overall financial condition is made to determine
the need, if any, for possible write-downs or appropriate additions to the allowance for credit losses.

Potential problem loans are those loans not classified as nonperforming, but where information known
by management indicates serious doubt that the borrower will be able to comply with the present payment
terms. Management identifies these loans through its ongoing loan review process. As of December 31,
2004, potential problem loans decreased $12.2 million to $54.3 million at December 31, 2004 from
$66.5 million at December 31, 2003.

Nonperforming assets and potential problem loans consisted of the following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Nonperforming loans:

Nonaccrual leans ............... $ 20605 $ 33887 $ 19654 $ 14,179 $ 8,297

Restructured:loans . ............. — — — 16 1,298

Total nonperforming loans ....... 20,605 33,887 19,654 14,195 9,595
Foreclosed assets:

Real estate acquired by foreclosure 1,536 2,124 3,358 1,837 1,702

Other repossessed assets . ........ 216 169 66 127 192

Total foreclosed assets........... - 1,752 2,293 3,424 1,964 1,894

Total nonperforming assets ....... $ 22357 $ 36,180 § 23078 $ 16,159 § 11,489
Nonperforming loans to period-end

loans .......ccoviiiiiniiin. 0.88% 1.57% 0.74% 0.74% 0.65%
Nonperforming assets to period-end

ASSELS .. i 0.67% 1.13% 0.64% 0.58% 0.55%
Nonperforming assets to total period-

end loans and foreclosed assets . .. 0.95% 1.68% 0.87% 0.85% 0.77%
Potential probléem loans............ $ 54293 $§ 66482 $ 62,189 $ 51,456 § 38,753
Accruing loans past due 90 days or

MOTE .\ttt $ 2395 $ 35 % 984 § 1,360 626

Nonperforming assets were $22.4 million at December 31, 2004, down $13.8 million or 38.2% from
$36.2 million at year-end 2003. The decrease was primary the result of our efforts to improve asset quality
during 2004. During the first quarter of 2004, we sold $10.7 million of nonperforming loans which
increased charge-offs by $4.6 million. We had provided for the losses on these nonperforming loans during
previous periods and decided to sell these loans to minimize further loss exposure: Interest foregone on
nonaccrual loans was approximately $1.0 million during 2004.

At December 31, 2003, we had three large nonperforming relationships that were placed on
nonaccrual status during the second half of 2003. These relationships individually were larger than
$3.0 million. Two of these nonperforming relationships were returned to performing status during the first
half of 2004. The third of these relationships was partially charged-off during 2004. The remainder of this
relationship was paid off in the third quarter of 2004. Management implemented more stringent credit
approval standards for relationships of large size loans in the fourth quarter of 2003.
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Accruing loans past due 90 days or more at December 31, 2004 totaled $2.4 million compared to $35
thousand at December 31, 2003. The balance at December 31, 2004 included loans to one borrower
totaling $2.0 million which were in the process of being paid off at year-end.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The provision for credit losses decreased $5.4 million from $17.7 million for 2003 to $12.2 million for
2004. During 2004, we incurred net charge-offs of $12.7 million or 0.58% of average loans. The provision
for credit losses and net charge-offs for 2003 were impacted by the partial charge-off of one of the three
problem loan relationships previously discussed. A total of $2.0 million was charged-off during the fourth
quarter of 2003 in conjunction with this relationship. During 2003, net charge-offs were $14.8 million or
0.60% of average loans.

The allowance for credit losses is a valuation reserve established through charges to earnings in the
form of a provision for credit losses. Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, management presents a
quarterly review of the allowance for credit losses to the Bank’s Board of Directors, indicating any changes
in the allowance since the last review and any recommendations as to adjustments in the allowance. In
making our evaluation, we consider the industry diversification of the commercial loan portfolio and the
effect of changes in the local real estate market on collateral values. We also consider the results of recent
regulatory examinations, our history of credit experience and our ongoing internal credit reviews.

We continually monitor economic conditions in our local market areas and the probable impact on
borrowers, past-due amounts, related collateral values, the number and size of non-performing loans and
on the resulting amount of charge-offs for the period.

We have several systems and procedures in place to assist in managing the overall quality of the loan
portfolio. In addition to established underwriting guidelines and approval processes, we monitor
delinquency levels for any negative or adverse trends. We also perform reviews of the loan portfolios on a
regular basis to identify troubled loans and to assess their overall probability of collection.

Ongoing portfolio reviews are conducted by our internal loan review department under an established
loan review program. Annually, we target a loan review penetration of at least 35% of the total commercial
and real estate loan portfolios.

Through the loan review process, we maintain an internally classified loan list, which, along with the
delinquency list of loans, helps us assess the overall quality of the loan portfolios and the adequacy of the
allowance for credit losses. Loans on this listing are classified as substandard, doubtful or loss based on
probability of repayment, collateral valuation and related collectibility.

Loans classified as “substandard” have clear and defined weaknesses such as highly leveraged
positions, unfavorable financial ratios, uncertain repayment sources or poor financial condition, which may
jeopardize the loan’s recoverability. Loans classified as “doubtful” have characteristics similar to
substandard loans but with an increased risk that a loss may occur or that at least a portion of the loan
may require a charge-off if liquidated at present. Although loans classified as substandard do not duplicate
loans classified as doubtful, both substandard and doubtful loans include some loans that are delinquent at
least 30 days or on nonaccrual status. Loans classified as “loss” are those loans that are in the process of
being charged off.

At December 31, 2004, substandard loans totaled $69.8 million, of which $14.1 million were loans
designated as delinquent or nonaccrual; and doubtful loans totaled $5.1 million all of which were
designated as delinquent or nonaccrual.

In addition to the internally classified loan list and delinquency list of loans, we maintain a separate
“watch list” which further aids in monitoring the loan portfolios. Watch list loans show warning elements,
deficiencies that require attention in the short run, or where pertinent ratios of the loan account have
weakened to a point where more frequent monitoring is warranted. These loans do not have all the
characteristics of a classified loan (substandard or doubtful) but do show weakened elements as compared
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with those of a satisfactory credit. We review these loans in assessing the adequacy of the allowance for
credit losses. As of December 31, 2004, watch list loans totaled $217.6 million.

Management assigns loan grades by individual loan and allocations are made within each loan grade.
Loans are assigned a grade according to payment history, collateral values, and financial condition of the

borrower.

The Bank maintains an adequate allowance for credit losses through its watchlist classifications,
allocating an increasing reserve amount as the severity of a problem loan increases. The Bank maintains an
unallocated reserve for satisfactory non-classified credits based, in part, on the average of the last three

year’s actual net charge-offs.

The following table presents an analysis of the allowance for credit losses and other related data

(dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Average loans outstanding. ......... $2,190,806  $2,465,838  $2,197,875 $1,693,867  $1,331,282
Loans outstanding at period-end .... $2,344,977 $2,157,039  $2,644,862  $1,928,293  $1,484,990
Allowance for credit losses at
January 1 ... ........ ... ..... $ 30,722 $ 27248 % 22927 $ 16,862 $ 13,998
Charge-offs:
Commercial and industrial . ...... 10,365 10,597 7,384 6,969 7,061
Real estate, mortgage and
construction ................. 3,405 4,486 1,249 1,057 643
Consumer/other................ 1,446 1,590 1,122 1,797 63
Total charge-offs ............. 15,216 16,673 9,755 9,823 7,767
Recoveries:
Commercial and industrial ....... 2,094 1,447 1,400 871 861
Real estate, mortgage and
construction ................. 159 157 75 111 33
Consumer/other................ 223 343 245 464 69
Total recoveries .............. 2,476 1,947 1,720 1,446 963
Net charge-offs................... 12,740 14,726 8,035 8,377 6,804
Acquired allowance for credit losses — 855 656 2,758 —
Allowance for credit losses sold with
divestiture ..................... — (353) — — —
Provision for credit losses .......... 12,250 17,698 11,700 11,684 9,668
Allowance for credit losses at
December 31 .................. $ 30,232 $§ 30,722 $§ 27248 $ 22927 $ 16,862
Ratios:
Allowance to average loans. ... ... 1.38% 1.25% 1.24% 1.35% 1.27%
Allowance to period end loans . .. . 1.29% 1.42% 1.03% 1.19% 1.14%
Net charge-offs to average loans . . 0.58% 0.60% 0.37% 0.49% 0.51%
Allowance to period-end
nonperforming loans........... 146.72% 90.66% 138.64% 161.51% 175.74%
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The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for credit losses among various categories of
loans. The allocation is made for analytical purposes and is not necessarily indicative of the categories in
which future loan losses may occur. The total allowance is available to absorb losses from any category of
loans.

December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

% of loans % of loans % of loans % of loans % of loans

in each in each in each in each in each
Balance of allowance Category to Category to Category to Category to Category to
for credit losses at Total Loans Total Loans Total Loans Total Loans Total Loans

end of period Held for Held for Held for Held for Held for
applicable to: Amount Investment Amount Investment Amount Investment Amount Investment Amount Investment

{Dollars in thousands)

Commercial and
industrial ...... $ 8,925 30% $11,844 32% $ 9,188 32% $ 8,361 1% §$ 7,521 35%

Real estate,
mortgage and

construction . ... 10,647 67% 8,855 64% 7,738 61% 5,538 60% 3,348 55%
Consumer/other .. 164 3% 1,009 4% 1,323 7% 868 9% 1,073 10%
Unallocated . .. ... 9,896 N/A 9,014 N/A 8,999 N/A 8,160 N/A 4,920 N/A

$30,232 100%  $30,722 100%  $27,248 100%  $22,927 100%  $16,862 100%

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY AND LIQUIDITY

Interest rate risk is the risk to interest income attributed to the repricing characteristics of interest
sensitive assets and liabilities. An interest sensitive asset or liability is one that experiences changes in
cashflows as a direct result of changes in market interest rates.

We manage interest rate risk by positioning the balance sheet to maximize net interest income while
maintaining an acceptable level of risk, remaining mindful of the relationship between profitability,
liquidity and interest rate risk. The overall interest rate risk position and strategies for the management of
interest rate risk are reviewed by senior management, the Asset/Liability Management Committee and our
Board of Directors on an ongoing basis.

We measure interest rate risk using a variety of methodologies including, but not limited to, dynamic
simulation analysis, GAP analysis and static balance sheet rate shocks. Dynamic simulation analysis is the
primary tool used to measure interest rate risk. We model the effects of non-paralle]l movements in
multiple yield curves, changes in borrower and depositor behaviors, changes in loan and deposit pricing,
and changes in loan and deposit portfolio compositions and growth rates over a 24 month horizon.

A GAP analysis measures maturity and repricing relationships between interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities at specific points in time. A bank is considered asset sensitive, or having a
positive GAP, when the amount of its interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a given period
exceeds the amount of its interest-bearing liabilities also maturing or repricing within that time period.
Conversely, a bank is considered liability sensitive, or having a negative GAP, when the amount of its
interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within a given period exceeds the amount of its interest-
earning assets also maturing or repricing within that time period.
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The following table sets forth the expected maturity and repricing characteristics of our interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities as of December 31, 2004:

5-10 Over 10
0-90 Days 90-365 Days 1-5 Years Years Years Total

(In thousands, except for data expressed in percentages)

Interest-earning assets:
Cash and cash

equivalents.......... $ 208 $ — 3 — 3 — — 3 208
Deposits in other

financial institutions . . 397 99 99 — — 595
Trading assets ......... 36,720 — — — — 36,720
Securities .. ........... 24,395 12,166 259,417 226,835 135,305 658,118
Loans ................ 1,526,583 159,007 583,051 50,857 25479 2,344,977

Total interest-earning

assets ............ 1,588,303 171,272 842,567 277,692 160,784 3,040,618

Interest-bearing

liabilities:
Demand and savings

deposits ............ 970,281 — — - —_ 970,281

Certificates of deposit
and other time

deposits ............ 250,382 235,123 104,118 46 — 589,669
Short-term borrowings . . 420,575 — — — —_ 420,575
Subordinated debt...... — — — — 47,162 47,162
Junior subordinated

debt ............ ... 20,619 61,856 32,475

Total interest-bearing

liabilities ......... 1,661,857 235,123 104,118 46 109,018 2,110,162
GAP before effect of

interest rate swap . ... (73,554) (63,851) 738,449 277,646 51,766 930,456
Effect of interest rate

swap — pay floating . . 47,162 — — — (47,162) —
Period GAP........... (120,716) (63,851) 738,449 277,646 98,928 930,456
Cumulative GAP ...... ($120,716) ($ 184,567) $ 553,882 $831,528 $930,456

Period GAP to total
assets ...l (3.62%) (1.91%) 22.14% 8.32% 2.97%

Cumulative GAP to
total assets.......... (3.62%) (5.53%) 16.60% 24.93% 27.89%

We utilize static balance sheet rate shocks to estimate the potential impact on net interest income
and present value of equity of changes in interest rates under various rate scenarios. This analysis estimates
a percentage of :change in these metrics from the stable rate base scenario versus alternative scenarios of
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rising and falling market interest rates by instantaneously shocking a static balance sheet. The following
table summarizes the simulated change over a 12-month horizon as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Increase (Decrease) in

‘ Inlt\iizst Present Value
Changes in Interest Rates (Basis Points) Income of Equity
December 31, 2004
200 . e 5.96% -4.13%
FA00 e e 3.14% -3.29%
Base . ... P "~ 0.00% 0.00%
100 ... e S -5.43%  -0.79%
00 -6.69% -0.77%
December 31, 2003 ' '
+200 ... P 6.03% -7.00%
F100 Lo C314%  -2.72%
Base . ... .. e e 0.00% . 0.00%
SR00 L -3.80% 0.62%
200 e P -13.17% 3.25%

These sensitivities are all within the thresholds set by our Asset/Liability Committee. Each rate
scenario reflects unique prepayment and repricing assumptions. Because of uncertainties related to
customer behaviors, loan and deposit pricing levels, competitor behaviors, and socio-economic factors that
could affect the shape of the yield curves, this analysis is not intended to and does not provide a precise
forecast of the effect actual changes in market rates will have on the Company. The interest rate
sensitivity analysis includes assumptions that (i) the composition of our interest sensitive assets and
liabilities existing at year end will remain constant over the measurement period; and (ii} that changes in
market rates are parallel and instantaneous across the yield curve regardless of duration or repricing
characteristics of specific assets or liabilities. Further, this analysis does not contemplate any actions that
we might undertake in response to changes in market factors. Accordingly, this analysis is not intended to
and does not provide a precise forecast of the affect actual changes in market rates will have on the
Company.

A number of factors have affected the change in the simulations from 2003 to 2004. Among these are
loan pricing assumptions that have resulted from the flattening of the yield curve as well as competitive
pressures. Additionally, the composition of our loan, deposit, and securities portfolios has changed over this
time period.

The objectives of our liquidity management is to maintain our ability to meet day-to-day deposit
withdrawals and other payment obligations, to raise funds to support asset growth, to maintain reserve
requirements and otherwise operate on an ongoing basis. We strive to manage a liquidity position sufficient
to meet operating requirements while maintaining an appropriate balance between assets and liabilities to
meet the expectations of our shareholders. In recent years, our liquidity needs have primarily been met by
growth in core deposits. In addition to core deposits, we have access to funds from correspondent banks
and from the Federal Home Loan Bank, supplemented by amortizing securities and loan portfolios. The
Bank also accepts brokered certificates of deposit.

Sterling Bancshares must provide for its own liquidity and fund its own obligations. The primary
source of Sterling Bancshares’ revenues is from dividends declared by the Bank. There are statutory and
regulatory provisions that could limit the ability of the Bank to pay dividends to Sterling Bancshares. At
December 31, 2004, the Bank had approximately $44.2 million in the aggregate available to be paid as
dividends to Sterling Bancshares. It is not anticipated that such restrictions will have an impact on the
ability of Sterling Bancshares to meet its ongoing cash obligations. As of December 31, 2004, we did not
have any material commitments for capital expenditures.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS, COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Our potential obligations associated with commitments to extend credit, outstanding letters of credit
and mortgages sold with recourse as of December 31, 2004 are summarized below (in thousands). Since
commitments associated with letters of credit and lending and financing arrangements may expire unused,
the amounts shown do not necessarily reflect the actual future cash funding requirements.

Less than 1-3 3-5 Over §
One Year Years Years Years Total
Commitments to extend credit ................ $467,127  $83,434  $65,030  $42,149  $657,740
Standby letters of credit . ..................... 26,613 1,724 98 —_ 28,435
Total ..o $493,740  $85,158  $65,128  $42,149  $686,175

Off-balance sheet arrangements also include our Trust Preferred Securities, which have been de-
consolidated in this report as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Further information regarding the Trust Preferred Securities
can be found in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional discussion of financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk, including a discussion of the nature, business purpose and
importance of off-balance sheet arrangements.

Our future contractual cash payments are as follows (in thousands):

Less than 1-3 3-5 Over 5
One Year Years Years Years Total
Junior subordinated debt .................... $ —  $ — $ — $82475 $ 82475
Subordinated debt.......... ... ... ... ... ... — — — 50,000 50,000
Interest expense related to long-term debt. .. ... 7,463 14,926 14,946 148,903 186,238
Operating leases ........................... 3,825 7,350 7,102 6,722 24,999
Certificates and other time deposits ........... 485,505 73,119 30,999 46 589,669
Total . ... $496,793  $95,395  $53,047 $288,146  $933,381

The amount shown above for subordinated debt represents our contractual obligation. The
subordinated debt is reflected in the consolidated balance sheet at its fair value. As discussed earlier, the
Bank entered into an interest rate swap designated as a fair-value hedge of the subordinated debt. Refer to
Note 10 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Interest expense obligations on fixed rate junior subordinated debt are calculated based on the stated
contractual interest rates. Interest expense on variable rate junior subordinated debt is calculated assuming
the current 3-month LIBOR rate of 1.975% plus 3.45%. Interest expense on subordinated debt is
calculated based on the fixed coupon rate of the debt adjusted for the associated interest rate swap
agreement assuming the current 3-month LIBOR rate. Refer to Notes 10 and 11 in the Consolidated
Financial Statements for further information.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2004, shareholders’ equity totaled $313.2 million or 9.3% of total assets, as
compared to $292.6 million or 9.1% of total assets at December 31, 2003. Our risk-based capital ratios
together with the minimum capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2004 were as follows (dollars
in thousands):

For Capital
Actual Adequacy Purposes
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets).............. $406,343  14.55% $223,457 8.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) ............. 328,948 11.78% 111,729 4.0%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets) ................... 328,948 10.15% 129,625 4.0%

See Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of regulatory capital
requirements.

RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information contained in this report, the following risks may affect us. If any
of these risks occurs, our business, financial condition or operating results could be adversely affected.

Our profitability depends significantly on economic conditions.

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions of the nation, the Houston
metropolitan area and, to a lesser extent, that of the San Antonio and Dallas metropolitan areas. Unlike
larger banks that are more geographically diversified, we provide banking and financial services to
customers primarily in the market areas in which we operate. The local economic conditions of these areas
have a significant impact on our commercial, real estate and construction loans, the ability of the
borrowers to repay these loans and the value of the collateral securing these loans. A significant decline in
general economic conditions, such as inflation, recession, acts of terrorism, an outbreak of hostilities,
unemployment and other factors beyond our control will impact these local economic conditions and will
negatively affect the financial results of our banking operations. In addition, Houston remains largely
dependent on the energy industry. A downturn in the energy industry, and energy-related business could
indirectly and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

We rely on an owner-operated business market.

Our business development and marketing strategy primarily targets the banking and financial needs of
owner-operated businesses with credit needs of under $4 million. These owner-operated businesses
represent a major sector of the Houston and national economies. If general economic conditions negatively
impact this economic sector in the metropolitan areas in which we operate, our results of operations and
financial condition will be significantly affected.

If our allowance for credit losses is not sufficient to cover actual loan losses, our earnings could decrease.

Our loan customers may not repay their loans according to the terms of these loans and the collateral
securing the payment of these loans may be insufficient to assure repayment. We may experience
significant credit losses that could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. We make
various assumptions and judgments about the collectibility of our loan portfolio, inciuding the
creditworthiness of our borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for
the repayment of many of our loans. In determining the size of the allowance, we rely on our experience
and our evaluation of economic conditions. If our assumptions prove to be incorrect, our current allowance
may not be sufficient to cover future loan losses and adjustments may be necessary to allow for different
economic conditions or adverse developments in our loan portfolio. Significant additions to our allowance
would materially decrease our net income.
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In addition, federal and state regulators periodically review our allowance for credit losses and may
require us to increase our provision for credit losses or recognize further loan charge-offs, based on
judgments different than those we make. Any increase in our allowance or charge-offs as required by these
regulatory agencies could have a negative affect on us.

Fluctuations in interest rates could reduce our profitability.

We realize income primarily from the difference between interest earned on loans and securities and
the interest paid on deposits and borrowings. We expect that we will periodically experience “gaps” in the
interest rate sensitivities of our assets and liabilities, meaning that either our interest-bearing liabilities will
be more sensitive to changes in market interest rates than our interest-earning assets, or vice versa. In
either event, if market interest rates should move contrary to our position, this “gap” will work against us,
and our earniigs may be negatively affected. A

We are unable to predict fluctuations of market interest rates, which are affected by the following
factors:

« inflation;

* recession;

* arise in unemploymént;-

* tightening money supply;

« international disorder; and

* instability in domestic and vforcign financial markets.

Qur asset/liability management strategy, which is designed to address the risk from changes in market
interest rates and the shape of the yield curve, may not prevent changes in interest rates from having a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Competition with other financial institutions could adversely affect our profitability.

We face vigorous competition from banks and other financial institutions, including savings
institutions, finance companies and credit unions. A number of these banks and other financial institutions
have substantially greater resources and lending limits, larger branch systems and a wider array of banking
services. To a limited extent, we also compete with other providers of financial services, such as money
market mutual funds, brokerage firms, consumer finance companies and insurance companies. This
competition may reduce or limit our margins on banking services, reduce our market share and adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition. Additionally, we face competition primarily from
other banks in attracting, developing and retaining qualified banking professionals.

We may not be able to maintain our historical growth rate which may adversely impact our results of
operations and financial condition.

To implement our growth strategy, we have initiated internal growth programs, completed various
acquisitions and opened additional offices in the past few years. We may not be able to sustain our
historical rate of growth or may not even be able to grow at all. We may not be able to obtain the
financing necessary to fund additional growth and may not be able to find suitable candidates for
acquisition. Various factors, such as economic conditions and competition, may impede or prohibit the
opening of new branch offices. Further, our inability to attract and retain experienced bankers may
adversely affect our internal growth. A significant decrease in our historical rate of growth may adversely
impact our results of operations and financial condition.
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We may be unable to complete acquisitions, and once complete, may not be able to integrate our
acquisitions successfully.

Our growth strategy includes our desire to acquire other financial institutions. We may not be able to
complete any future acquisitions and, if completed, we may not be able to successfully integrate the
operations, management, products and services of the entities we acquire. Following each acquisition, we
must expend substantial managerial, operating, financial and other resources to integrate these entities. In
particular, we may be required to install and standardize adequate operational and control systems, deploy
or modify equipment, implement marketing efforts in new as well as existing locations and employ and
maintain qualified personnel. Our failure to successfully integrate the entities we acquire into our existing
operations may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and may be adversely affected by changes in federal and
local laws and regulations.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by federal and state banking
authorities. Any change in applicable regulations or federal or state legislation could have a substantial
impact on us and our operations. Additional legislation and regulations may be enacted or adopted in the
future that could significantly affect our powers, authority and operations, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Further, regulators have significant
discretion and power to prevent or remedy unsafe or unsound practices or violations of laws by banks and
bank holding companies in the performance of their supervisory and enforcement duties. The exercise of
this regulatory discretion and power may have a negative impact on us.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding the market risk of our financial instruments, see “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Interest Rate Sensitivity and L1qu1d1ty
Our principal market risk exposure is to interest rates.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Refer to the index included on page 52 and the Consolidated Financial Statements that begin on
page 54 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, an evaluation was made by
the Company’s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the most recent fiscal quarter that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. All internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide
only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

As of December 31, 2004, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations :of the Treadway Commission. This assessment included controls over the preparation of the
schedules equivalent to the basic financial statements in accordance with the instructions for the
Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank Holding Companies (Form FRY-9C) to meet the reporting
requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act. Based on the
assessment, management determined that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on those criteria.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the
Company’s consolidated financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, has issued an
attestation report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. The report is included in this Item under the heading
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”

J. Downey Bridgwater
Chief Executive Officer

Y v

Stephen C. Raffaele
Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Sterling Bancshares, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Because management’s assessment and our audit were conducted to meet the
reporting requirements of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act
(FDICIA), management’s assessment and our audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
included controls over the preparation of the schedules equivalent to the basic financial statements in accordance
with the instructions for the Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank Holding Companies (Form FR Y-9C).
The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing, and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
gecause of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

eteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 of
the Company and our report dated March 4, 2003, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial
statements.

Dedoitte t Toucke LiP

Houston, Texas
March 4, 2005
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On October 1, 2004, Sterling Bancshares entered into a Credit Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, which provides for a one-year $20 million revolving line of credit. Effective March 8,
2005, the Credit Agreement was amended to clarify certain restrictive loan covenants. Sterling Bancshares
has not as of this date borrowed any funds under this credit facility. The outstanding principal balance of
the line of credit bears interest at a rate equal to one and sixty-five hundredths percent (1.65%) above the
Fed Funds Rate in effect. Sterling Bancshares pays an annual commitment fee of one-eighth percent per
annum on the unused amount of the line of credit. Advances under the line of credit may be repaid, in
whole or in part, at any time during the term. All outstanding advances under the line of credit are due
and payable in full on September 30, 2005. Sterling Bancshares’ obligations under the line of credit are
unsecured and are guaranteed by its subsidiary Sterling Bancorporation, Inc.

Wells Fargo’s obligation to make advances under the Credit Agreement is subject to the satisfaction
of a number of conditions, including that there not be, as determined by Wells Fargo, any material adverse
change in Sterling Bancshares’ financial condition or business nor any material decline in the market value
of any collateral or a substantial or material portion of Sterling Bancshares’ assets. The Credit Agreement
also contains certain restrictive loan covenants, including, among others, covenants limiting Sterling
Bancshares’ ability to merge with another entity, make any substantial changes in the nature of its
business, dispose of a substantial or material amount of assets other than in the ordinary course of
business, guarantee obligations of third parties, make loans to or investments in any third party in excess of
$15 million, pledge its assets and pay dividends or repurchase stock during any fiscal year in an aggregate
amount in excess of ten percent of the Bank’s equity capital as reflected in its regulatory report of financial
condition for the end of the prior fiscal year. The Credit Agreement contains events of default that
include, among others, non-payment of principal, interest or fees, inaccuracy of representations and .
warranties, violation of covenants in the loan documents, bankruptcy and insolvency events of Sterling
Bancshares or the Bank, the issuance or proposed issuance of any administrative actions by any federal or
state banking regulatory agency against Sterling Bancshares or the Bank, and any change in ownership of
25% or more of Sterling Bancshares’ common stock. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, all of the
indebtedness under the Credit Agreement will, at Wells Fargo’s option and without notice, become
immediately due and payable.

In connection with our preparation of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004
to be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, management determined that material pre-tax
charges totaling $2.8 million relating to (i) a pool of purchased lease payment interests, and (ii) a loan to
one commercial borrower were required pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles.

In the case of the purchased lease payment interests, the Company contracted to acquire an interest
in the payment stream of certain pooled finance leases for an aggregate purchase price of $5.6 million. A
review of the documentation relating to the purchased lease interests was conducted after delinquencies
were reported by the Company’s leasing department. Such review revealed that the seller of these pooled
interests had improperly utilized sale proceeds in breach of various contractual provisions. As a result, the
purchased lease interests became potentially subject to a prior perfected security interest by another party.
In response to this and additional concerns about the financial condition of the seller and their ability to
fulfill other provisions of the lease purchase agreement, the Company recorded a pre-tax charge of
$1.1 million during the fourth quarter of 2004 for the purchased lease interests associated with 31 of the
finance leases impacted by these contractual breaches. The after-tax impact is approximately $743
thousand and may be offset over time depending on recoveries from the seller.

In the case of the commercial loan, the Company authorized a provision for credit losses of
$1.7 million relating to a commercial loan relationship with an aggregate outstanding principal amount of
$3.4 million. A review of the credit relationship revealed that our borrower did not receive proper
documentation and collateral from the third party to whom the funds were advanced. As a result, the
Company did not receive a valid security interest in collateral sufficient to cover the outstanding principal
balance on the loan. The Company may be required to make additional provisions with respect to this
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credit if additional collateral is not obtained or the realizable value of the collateral is less than previously
estimated. The Bank has been named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by this borrower. The Bank has
filed a countersuit to this action. At this time, the Company does not have sufficient information to
evaluate the claims.

These charges were based on information available to management at the time and actual losses may
be higher or lower. The Company’s expenditures in connection with these matters (including legal and
accounting fees) are currently estimated at $50,000. The actual amount of such: expenditures could vary,
depending upon the length of time and nature of proceeding involved in the resolution of these claims.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Item as to the directors and executive officers is hereby incorporated
by reference from the information appearing under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Executive
Officers and Other Significant Employees” and “Section 16 Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”™
in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 within 120 days of year end. The information required by this Item as to the Code of Ethics
for Senior Financial Officers is herby incorporated by reference from “Item 1 — Business — Available
Information” of this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item as to the management of the Company is hereby incorporated
by reference from the information appearing under the caption “Executive Compensation,” “Summary
Compensation Table,” “Stock Option Plans,” “Employment Agreements and Other Compensation
Agreements” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the
Securities Exchange Act.of 1934 within 120 days of year end. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
accordance with the instructions to Item 402 of Regulation S-K, the information contained in the
Company’s proxy statement under the subheading “Human Resources Programs Committee Report™ and
heading “Performance Graph” shall not be deemed to be filed as part of or incorporated by reference into
this Form 10-K.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item as to the ownership by management and others of securities of
the Company is hereby incorporated by reference from the information appearing under the captions
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of year end.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this Item as to certain business relationships and transactions with
management and other related parties of the Company is hereby incorporated by reference to such
information appearing under the captions “Certain Transactions” and “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Company’s definitive proxy to be filed with the SEC pursuant
to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of year end.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item as to disclosures regarding accounting fees and services is
hereby incorporated by reference to such information appearing under the caption “Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm’s Fees” in the Company’s definitive proxy to be filed with the SEC pursuant to
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 within 120 days of year end.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) List of :documents filed as part of this report

1. Consolidated Financial Statements. The following Consolidated Financial Statements and Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders” Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules. These schedules are omitted as the required
information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the consolidated financial statements
or related notes.

3. Exhibits.
Exhibit No.

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 23, 2000 among the Company, Sterling
Bancorporation, Inc. and CaminoReal Bancshares of Texas, Inc., as amended. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.5 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 000-20750).]

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of March 1, 2001, by and between Sterling Bancshares,
Inc. and Lone Star Bancorporation, Inc., as amended. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2
of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 14, 2001 (File
No. 000-20750).]

2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of October 1, 2001 by and among Sterling Bancshares,
Inc., Sterling Bancorporation, Inc. and Community Bancshares, Inc., as amended.
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.7 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File
No. 000-20750).]

24 Agreement and Plan of Merger Among Sterling Bancshares, Inc., Sterling Bancorporation, Inc.
and ENB Bankshares Inc. dated as of May 22, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1
of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 14, 2002 (File
No. 000-20750).]

2.5 Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated July 12, 2002 between Sterling Bank Inc. and
James Wilson as amended by First Amendment to Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated

as of August 2, 2002, [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Company’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 13, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

2.6 Purchase and Assumption Agreement dated as of October 29, 2002 between Sterling Bank Inc.
and South Texas National Bank of Laredo. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.9 of the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 000-20750).]
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Exhibit No.

2.1

2.8

2.9

3.1

3.2

33

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of July 16, 2003 by and among Sterling Bancshares, Inc.,
Sterling Bank, CMCR Holding Company and RBC Mortgage Company. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 15,
2003 (File No. 000-20750).] ‘

Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of September 30, 2003 by and among
Sterling Bancshares, Inc., Sterling Bank, CMCR Holding Company and RBC Mortgage
Company. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed on October 15, 2003 (File No. 000-20750).]

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated August 18, 2003 by and among Sterling Bancshares, Inc.,
SB 2003, Inc. and South Texas Capital Group, Inc. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2003 (File

No. 000-20750).]

Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended. {Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File Nos. 333-55724,
333-55724-01, and 333-55724-02).]

Articles of Amendment to the Restated and Amended Articles of Incorporation of Sterling
Bancshares, Inc. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed on August 13, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).}

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sterling Bancshares, Inc. [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 26, 2004 (File
No. 000-20750).]

Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated March 21, 2001, [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001 (File
No. 000-20750).]

Indenture dated March 21, 2001. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]

First Supplemental Indenture dated March 21, 2001. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001 (File No. 000-20750).]

9.20% Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debenture due March 21, 2031. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2001
(File No. 000-20750).]

Indenture dated August 30, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form §-K filed on September 12, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debenture due August 30, 2032. [ Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12,
2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Guarantee Agreement dated August 30, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 12, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Preferred Securities Guarantee Agreement dated September 26, 2002. [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26,
2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Second Supplemental Indenture dated September 26, 2002. {Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.9 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002 (File
No. 000-20750).]

8.30% Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debenture due September 26, 2032.
[Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002 (File No. 000-20750).]

Fiscal and Paying Agency Agreement dated April 10, 2003 between Sterling Bank and Deutsche
Bank Trust Company Americas. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 15, 2003 (File No. 000-20750).]
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Exhibit No.
4.12

10.1%**

10.2

10.3%**

10.4%**
10.5*
10.6*

10.7%%*

10.8%*x*

10.9%**

10.10***

10.11%%*
10.12%**

10.13%%x*

10.14%**
10.15%%*
21%
23.1*
31.1%*

Form of Global Certificate representing Sterling Bank’s 7.375% Subordinated Noted due 2013.
[ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
April 15, 2003 (File No. 000-20750). ]

1994 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Company. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994.]

1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of the Company. [Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
1994.]

1984 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Company. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, effective October 22, 1992 (Registration
No. 33-51476).]

1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Compensation Plan. | Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.3 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-16719).]

Credit Agreement dated October 1, 2004 made by and between Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association regarding a line of credit in the amount of $20,000,000.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of March 8§, 2005 by and between Sterling
Bancshares, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

Employment Agreement between Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and J. Downey Bridgwater executed
on October 31, 2001 and effective as of January 1, 2002. [Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 99.3 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 14, 2001 (File
No. 000-207500).]

Sterling Bancshares, Inc. 2003 Stock Incentive and Compensation Plan [Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No.
333-105307).]

Consulting Agreement between Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and George Martinez executed on
June 9, 2004 and effective as of June 1, 2004. [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 5, 2004 (File No. 000-207501) ].

Form of Severance and Non-Competition Agreements between Sterling Bancshares, Inc.,
Sterling Bank and the following named executive officers:

Daryl D. Bohls Travis Jaggers
Danny L. Buck Graham B. Painter
Wanda S. Dalton Stephen C. Raffaele
Clinton Dunn Mike Skowronek

James W. Goolsby, Jr.

[ Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
on August 5, 2004 (File No. 000-207501) ].

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 4, 2005 (File No. 000-207500).]

Form of Incentive Stock Agreement [Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 4, 2005 (File No. 000-207500).]

Severance and Non-Competition Agreement between Sterling Bancshares, Inc., Sterling Bank
and Allen Brown executed and effective as of December 1, 2004. [Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 7, 2004 (File
No. 000-207500).]

Short Term Incentive Program For Shared Services

Short Term Incentive Program For Bank Offices.

Subsidiaries of the Company

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of J. Downey Bridgwater, President and Chief Executive Officer, as required
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit No.

31.2% Certification of Stephen C. Raffaele, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, as
required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1**  Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2**  Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
* As filed herewith.
** As furnished herewith.

*** Management Compensation Agreement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.

By /s/ J. Downey Bridgwater

J. Downey Bridgwater,
Chief Executive Officer and President

DATE: March 9, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacity indicated on this the 9th day of
March, 2005.

SIGNATURE TITLE

/s/ J. Downey Bridgwater Chief Executive Officer, President and Director (Principal
J. Downey Bridgwater Executive Officer)

/s/ Stephen C. Raffacle Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Stephen C. Raffaele (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/s/ Steven F. Retzloff Chairman and Director

Steven F. Retzloff

/s/ George Martinez Director
George Martinez

/s/ George Beatty, Jr. . Director
George Beatty, Jr.
/s/ Anat Bird Director
Anat Bird
/s/  R. Bruce LaBoon Director

R. Bruce LaBoon

/s/ James D. Calaway Director
James D. Calaway

/s/ Bruce J. Harper Director
Bruce J. Harper

/s/ David L. Hatcher Director
David L. Hatcher
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SIGNATURE TITLE

/s/  Glenn H. Johnson Director

Glenn H. Johnson

/s/ James J. Kearney Director

James J. Kearney

/s/ Paul Michael Mann, M.D. Director

Paul Michael Mann, M.D.

/s/ G. Edward Powell Director

G. Edward Powell

/s/ Thomas A. Reiser Director

Thomas A. Reiser

/s/ Raimundo Riojas E. Director

Raimundo Riojas E.

/s/ Howard T. Tellepsen, Jr. Director

Howard T. Tellepsen, Jr.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Sterling Bancshares, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sterling Bancshares Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management Our respon51b111ty is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Sterling Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
March 4, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Defoitte t Toucke LeP

Houston, Texas
March 4, 2005
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2004 2003 -
(In thousands, except share
amounts)
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ........ ... . ... ... . i $ 88439 § 136,764
Interest-bearing deposits in financial institutions ................... . ... .... 595 1,358
Trading @SSetS . o . vttt et et e e 36,720 172,825
Available-for-sale securities, at fairvalue . ........ ... ... ... . i, 540,704 522,936
Held-to-maturity securities, at amortized cost ........... ... . oo, 117,414 42,157
Loans held for sale . ... ... .. .. .. . . e 6,881 26,308
Loans held for investment. .. ... .. 2,338,096 2,130,731
Total 1oans .. ... . 2,344,977 2,157,039
Allowance for credit 10SS€S .. . ...t e s (30,232) (30,722)
L0ans, Net . .o e 2,314,745 2,126,317
Premises and equipment, NEt ... . ...ttt e 40,171 48,541
Real estate acquired by foreclosure . ........ ... ... i 1,536 2,124
GoodWill ..o 62,430 62,933
Core deposit intangibles, Net. . ... ... it i 1,839 2,326
Accrued Interest receivable . . ... . L e 11,964 12,046
Other A888TS . oot 119,463 76,553
TOT AL ASSE TS . e e e e e $3,336,070  $3,206,880
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand. .......... ... ... i $ 884,017 $ 834,313
Interest-bearing demand ............. ... .. i 970,281 929,577
Certificates and other time deposits......... ... ... i, 589,669 654,479
Total deposits . .. ..o e 2,443,967 2,418,369
Short-term BOTTOWINGS . . . .ottt et et 420,575 324,160
Subordinated debt . ... .. . 47,162 46,533
Junior subordinated debt. ... ... . ... 82,475 82,475
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities . .. ......................... 28,719 42,747
Total Habilities .. .ot 3,022,898 2,914,284
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES .......... . .. i — —

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Convertible preferred stock, $1 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, 20,000

issued and outstanding at December 31, 2003. No shares outstanding at

December 31, 2004 . .. .. .. — 20
Common stock, $1 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 45,068,048 and

44,642,109 issued and outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003,

TESPECHIVELY . . oot 45,068 44,642
Capital surplus ... ... 54,522 48,953
Retained earnings. . ...t e 213,814 197,819
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax............... (232) 1,162

Total shareholders’ equity . .. ... ..ot i it i 313,172 292,596

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ................ 83,336,070  $3,206,880

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004

2003

2002

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Interest income:

Loans, including fees . ... ..ot $138,023  $154,358  $156,902
Securities:
Taxable . ..o 21,307 10,947 13,957
Non-taxable . ... . 2,042 2,266 2,890
Trading @SSCLS . ..ottt ettt e 4,569 3,567 4,540
Federal funds sold ... ... .. . i 101 176 463
Deposits in financial institutions . ........ ... . i 55 69 106
Total INterest NCOME ..ottt ittt e e et 166,097 171,383 178,858
Interest expense:
Demand and savings deposits. .. ..o it 4,785 4,752 8,541
Certificates and other time deposits .............c.iiiiiveiiinan. 12,6%4 14,608 17,479
Short-term BOITOWINGS .. ..\ttt e e 4,163 4,921 4,946
Notes payable .. ... i — 585 797
Subordinated debt . .. .. ... .. e 2,640 1,903 —
Junior subordinated debt . ... ... ... 6,431 6,379 6,097
Total INTErest EXPENSE . . o . oottt ettt et e e e e 30,713 33,148 37,860
Net INTerest IMCOME . ..ottt ittt et e e e e e e e 135,384 138,235 140,998
Provision for credit 108S€S . . .. ... . 12,250 17,698 11,700
Net interest income after provision for credit losses . ........................ 123,134 120,537 129,298
Noninterest income:
Customer ServiCe fees . ...t i 14,536 16,214 16,893
Net gain (loss) on the sale of banking offices............................ (27) 3,517 —
Net gain on the sale of securities .................. ... .. . ... . 4,941 905 110
Net gain (loss) on trading assets .......... ... .. i, (452) 1,186 1,018
18 73 =T O PP 11,924 11,448 11,771
Total nonINterest MCOIME . ..\ v vttt et e ettt et 30,922 33,270 29,792
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits ........ ... .. o 68,272 65,525 63,430
OCCUPAMICY EXPEMSE « « « o vttt ettt et et et e e e e 15,326 15,364 15,181
Technology . .. ... 6,127 5,170 5,046
Professional fees .. ... . i e e 6,999 4,624 4,205
Postage, delivery and supplies . ... 3,179 3,474 3,690
MarKe N . . ot e e 1,457 1,498 566
Acquisition-related €Xpenses ... .. ... i — 66 822
Core deposit intangible amortization. . ...t 487 465 426
OtheT e e 17,762 15,230 16,824
Total noninterest EXPense . .. ... ..o it 119,609 111,416 110,190
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ..................... 34,447 42,391 48,900
Provision for INCOME taKES .. .. vt ittt et e e 9,484 14,037 15,717
Income from continuing operations ............... ... ... ... ... ... 24,963 28,354 33,183
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes ................... — 45,820 5,729
Provision for iNCOME taXES ..ottt it e e e e — 25,064 2,361
Income from discontinued operations ................... . ... ... ..., — 20,756 3,368
Nt ICOMIE . . . e $ 24,963 $ 49,110 $ 36,551
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic . .. $ 056 0.64 $ 076
Diluted . .. $ 055 $ 064 0.74
Earnings per share
BasiC . i e $ 0.56 1.11 0.83
DIluted . e $ 055 1.10 0.82

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Years Ended December 31,
Accartnhuelrated
Prgf(::l:ee:i—! letlsck Common Stock . Capital  Retained Coﬂ‘;‘;ﬂ:"sm
Shares Amount Shares Amount Surplus Earnings (Loss) Total
(In thousands)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1,2002 ......... 39 $39 43770 $43,770  $42,526 $127',144 $3,890 $217,369
Comprehensive income: .
Netincome ... ...coveiiviieeinnnnn 36,551 . 36,551
Net change in unrealized gains and losses .
: : 170 170

on available-for-sale securities, net of

taxes of $91
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net

gains included in net income, net of

' (72) (12)

taxes of $39.......... ..ol
Total comprehensive income......... 36,649
Issuance of common stock ................ 213 213 1,885 2,098
Issuance of preferred stock ................ 20 20 222 : 242
Cash dividends paid .. .................... o . ‘ (7,031) (7,031)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2002....... 59 59 43,983 - 43,983 44,633 156,664 3,988 249,327
Comprehensive income: v '
NEtICOmE + ...\t ' 49,110 49,110
Net change in unrealized gains and losses . .
(2,238) (2,238)

on available-for-sale securities, net of
taxes of $1,204 ... ... ... ...,

Less: Reclassification adjustment for net
gains included in net income, net of ' ‘ ,
(588%) {(588)

taxes of $317 ... ... L
Total comprehensive income......... . 46,284
Issuance of common stock ................ 594 595 4,345 ' 4,940
Conversion of preferred stock .............. (39) (39) 64 64 (25) —
Cash dividends paid .. ............... wevee L (7,955) (7,955)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2003....... 20 20 44,642 44,642 48,953 197,819 1,162 292,596
Comprehensive income:
Net income .. ..vovriineeiiin e 24,963 24,963
Net change in unrealized gains and losses
(1,623) (1,623)

on available-for-sale securities, net of

taxes of $874 . ... .. ... ... . ...,
Less: Reclassification adjustment for net

losses included in net income, net of :
. 229 229

taxes of $123. ... .,

Total comprehensive income .. ....... 23,569
Issuance of common stock ................ ) 406 406 5,569 5,975
Conversion of preferred stock .............. (20) (20) 20 20 —

: (8,968) - - (8,968)

$213,814 $(232) $313,172

Cash dividends paid ......................
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2004.......

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

45,068  $45,068  $54,522

I
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For The Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income from continuing operations. ......................... $ 24963 § 28,354 § 33,183
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Amortization and accretion of premiums and discounts on

securities, net. ... ... i 6,069 8,807 2,537
Provision for credit losses. . ... 12,250 17,698 11,700
Deferred income tax eXpense. .........c.covvevurennrnnnen. 1,151 522 2,610
Net gain on the sale of securities ......................... (4,941) (905) (110)
Net loss (gain) on the sale of banking offices............... 27 (3,517) —
Net gain on sale of bank assets........................... (195) — —
Net loss (gain) on trading assets ........... ...t 452 (1,186) (1,018)
Depreciation and amortization. ........................... 9,206 8,728 9,116
Write-downs, less gains on sale of real estate acquired by

foreclosure ......... .. .. e (58) (651) 484
Write-downs of bank assets . ........... . 1,388 — —
Net decrease (increase) in loans held forsale ........... .. 1,440 674,993 (439,796)
Purchases of trading assets ............. ... ... .o L (341,926)  (493,894)  (529,176)
Proceeds from sale and principal paydowns on trading ‘

SECUTIEIES ..\ttt it it e et e e 453,735 465,058 505,903
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable and other

LT - (20,763) 110,250 (73,351)
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable and other

Habilities . . .. ..o e (13,405) 18,252 3,855

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities from
continuing operations .. ............ ... ... . ... 129,393 832,509 (474,063)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Decrease in securities purchased under agreements to resell. . . .. — — 12,313
Proceeds from the maturities or calls of securities and paydowns :

of held-to-maturity securities. ............ ...t 9,587 19,580 16,306
Proceeds from the sale and calls of available-for-sale securities . . 161,834 32,487 6,477
Proceeds from maturities and paydowns of available-for-sale

SECUTIEIES . o ottt i e e e e e e 141,739 193,307 131,761
Purchases of available-for-sale securities ..................... (300,581)  (503,222)  (140,361)
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities. . .................... (84,975) — _—
Net increase in loans held for investment .................... (206,252)  (178,418)  (223,777)
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance....................... (20,000) (2,010) (2,084)
Proceeds from sale of real estate acquired by foreclosure ....... 5,199 6,796 2,969
Proceeds from sale of land held forsale .................. ... 729 — —
Net decrease (increase) in interest-bearing deposits in financial

INSTHELLIONS o vttt ettt e e e 763 (74) 812
Cash & cash equivalents related to sales of banking offices ..... — (106,652) —
Purchase of Plaza Bank (net of acquired cash and cash

EQUIVALENES) . .. e — (5,212) —

Purchase of ENB Bankshares, Inc. (net of acquired cash and

cash equivalents) .. ... ... ... o i i i — —_— (7,948)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment................ " 731 2,886 4,768
Purchase of premises and equipment ........................ (5,512) (5,436) {10,449)

Net cash used in investing activities from continuing
OPErations .......... ...ttt (296,738)  (545,968)  (209,213)
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — Continued

For The Years Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Net increase (decrease) in deposit accounts .. ................ 25,598 (171,755) 346,070
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings ............. 96,415 (194,930) 322,292
Repayments of notes payable .............. ... ... ... — (21,430) (602)
Issuance of subordinated debt . .......... ... ... .. ... .. ..... — 49,944 —
Issuance of trust preferred securities ........................ — — 51,250
Redemption of trust preferred securities ..................... — — (28,750)
Proceeds from issuance of common and preferred stock ........ 5,975 4,940 2,340
Payments of cash dividends . . ..................... e (8,968) (7,955) (7,031)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities from
continuing operations................ ... 0. 119,020 (341,186) 685,569
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents from
CONtINUING OPETALIONS . ...\ttt ettt cie et iee e (48,325) (54,645) 2,293
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations .......... — 44,409 (3,588)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................. 136,764 147,000 148,295
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...................... $ 88,439 $ 136,764 $ 147,000
Supplemental information:
Income taxes paid .. ....... . ... . i $ 29704 $§ 27443 § 14,173
Interest paid. ....... ... i 30,316 27,246 27,423
Noncash investing and financing activities —
Loan to finance the sale of premises and equipment ......... 419 — —
Acquisition of real estate through foreclosure of collateral .. .. 4,553 4,917 3,981

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
POLICIES

Organization — Sterling Bancshares, Inc. (“Sterling Bancshares” and together with its subsidiaries,
the “Company”), headquartered in Houston, Texas, is a bank holding company committed to serving
small- to mid-sized businesses. The Company provides commercial and consumer banking services in the
greater metropolitan areas of Houston, Dallas and San Antonio, Texas through the thirty-six community
banking offices of Sterling Bank, a banking association chartered under the laws of the State of Texas (the
“Bank”).

On September 30, 2003, the Company sold its 80% interest in Sterling Capital Mortgage Company
(*SCMC”). SCMC provided mortgage-banking services to consumers through 110 production offices in
Texas and fifteen other states.

Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies — The accounting and reporting policies
of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
the prevailing practices within the banking industry. A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

Basis of Presentation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Sterling
Bancshares and its subsidiaries except for those subsidiaries where it has been determined that the
Company is not the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted FIN 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities. Upon adoption, the trusts that previously issued the outstanding company-obligated mandatorily
redeemable trust preferred securities were deconsolidated from the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been restated to reflect the adoption of
FIN 46R. Additionally, these consolidated financial statements present the operations and net gain on sale
of SCMC as discontinued operations for all periods presented. SCMC’s operations were reported
previously as the Company’s mortgage-banking segment.

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near
term relate to the determination of the allowance for credit losses, the valuation of foreclosed real estate,
deferred tax assets, goodwill and other intangibles and trading activities.

Trading Assets — Securities classified as trading assets are bought with the anticipation of sale in the
near term and are carried at fair market value. Generally, these assets are held up to 120 days. These
securities consist primarily of the government-guaranteed portion of SBA loans.

Securities — Securities classified as held-to-maturity are carried at cost, adjusted for the amortization
of premiums and the accretion of discounts. Management has the positive intent and the Company has the
ability to hold these assets until their maturities. Under certain circumstances (including the deterioration
of the issuer’s creditworthiness or a change in tax law or statutory or regulatory requirements), these
securities may be sold or transferred to another portfolio.

Securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses are
excluded from earnings and reported, net of tax, as accumulated comprehensive income or loss until
realized. Declines in the fair value of individual securities below their cost that are determined to be other-
than-temporary would result in writedowns, as a realized loss, of the individual securities to their fair
value. Securities within the available-for-sale portfolio may be used as part of the Company’s asset and
liability management strategy and may be sold in response to changes in interest rate risk, prepayment risk
or other factors.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Premiums and discounts are amortized and accreted to operations using the level-yield method of
accounting, adjusted for prepayments as applicable. The specific identification method of accounting is
used to compute gains or losses on the sales of securities. Interest earned on these assets is included in
interest income.

Loans Held for Sale — Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value.
Premiums, discounts and loan fees (net of certain direct loan origination costs) on loans held for sale are
deferred until the related loans are sold or repaid. Gains or losses on loan sales are recognized at the time
of sale and determined using the specific identification method.

Loans Held for Investment — Loans held for investment are stated at the principal amount
outstanding, net of unearned discount. Unearned discount relates principally to consumer installment loans.
Interest income for loans is recognized principally by the simple interest method.

The Company provides equipment financing to its customers through a variety of lease arrangements.
Direct financing leases are included in loans held for investment and carried at the aggregate of lease
payments receivable plus estimated residual value of the leased property, less unearned income.

A loan is defined as impaired when based on current information and events, it is probable that a
creditor will be unable to collect all amounts due, both interest and principal, according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. The allowance for credit losses related to impaired loans is determined based
on the difference between the carrying value of impaired loan and its fair value. The fair value is
determined based on the present value of expected cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest
rate or, as a practical expedient, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent. Interest payments on impaired loans are typically applied to principal unless
collectibility of the principal amount is reasonably assured, in which case interest is recognized.

Nonperforming Loans and Past-Due Loans — Nonperforming loans are loans which have been
categorized by management as nonaccrual because collection of interest is doubtful and loans which have
been restructured to provide a reduction in the interest rate or a deferral of interest or principal payments
because of a borrower’s financial difficulty.

When the payment of principal or interest on a loan is delinquent for 90 days, or earlier in some
cases, the loan is placed on nonaccrual status and classified as impaired unless the loan is in the process of
collection and the underlying collateral fully supports the carrying value of the loan. If the decision is
made to continue accruing interest on the loan, periodic reviews are made to evaluate the appropriateness
of its accruing status. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all accrued but unpaid interest is
charged to operations. Generally, any payments received on nonaccrual loans are applied first to
outstanding loan amounts and next to the recovery of charged-off loan amounts. Any excess is treated as a
recovery of lost interest.

Restructured loans are those loans for which concessions in terms have been granted because of a
borrower’s financial difficulty. Interest is generally accrued on such loans in accordance with the new
terms.

Allowance for Credit Losses — The allowance for credit losses is a valuation allowance for losses
incurred on loans and binding loan commitments. All losses are charged to the allowance when the loss
actually occurs or when a determination is made that a loss is probable. Recoveries are credited to the
allowance at the time of recovery.

Throughout the year, management estimates the probable level of losses to determine whether the
allowance for credit losses is adequate to absorb losses in the existing portfolio. Based on these estimates,
an amount is charged to the provision for credit losses and credited to the allowance for credit losses in
order to adjust the allowance to a level determined to be adequate to absorb losses.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Management’s judgment as to the level of probable losses on existing loans involves the consideration
of current and anticipated economic conditions and their potential effects on specific borrowers; an
evaluation of the existing relationships among loans, potential credit losses and the present level of the
allowance; results of examinations of the loan portfolio by regulatory agencies; and management’s internal
review of the loan portfolio. In determining the collectibility of certain loans, management also considers
the fair value of any underlying collateral. The amount ultimately realized may differ from the carrying
value of these assets because of economic, operating or other conditions beyond the Company’s control.

Estimates of credit losses involve an exercise of judgment. While it is reasonably possible that in the
near term the Company may sustain losses which are substantial relative to the allowance for credit losses,
it is the judgment of management that the allowance for credit losses reflected in the consolidated balance
sheets is adequate to absorb probable losses that exist in the current loan portfolio.

Premises and Equipment — Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation expense is computed primarily using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives (ranging from three to forty years) of the assets. Leasehold
improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the periods of the leases or the estimated
useful lives, whichever is shorter. -

The Company evaluates for impairment its long-lived assets to be held and used, and long-lived assets
to be disposed of, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. Impairment is determined using the undiscounted operating cash flows
estimated over the remaining useful life of the related long-lived asset and the eventual disposal. In the
event of impairment, the asset is written down to its fair market value. Assets to be disposed of are
recorded at the lower of net book value or fair market value less cost to sell and are classified as assets
held for sale on the consolidated balance sheet at the date management commits to a plan of disposal.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles — Amortization of goodwill ceased beginning January 1, 2002 upon
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142. Intangible assets consist
primarily of core deposits and customer relationships. Intangible assets with definite useful lives are
amortized on an accelerated basis over their estimated life. Management performs an annual evaluation of
whether any impairment of the goodwill and other intangibles has occurred; if any such impairment is
determined, a writedown is recorded.

Real Estate Acquived by Foreclosure — The Company records real estate acquired by foreclosure at
fair value less estimated costs to sell. Adjustments are made to reflect declines in value subsequent to
acquisition, if any, below the recorded amounts. Required developmental costs associated with foreclosed
property under construction are capitalized and considered in determining the fair value of the property.
Operating expenses of such properties, net of related income, and gains and losses on their disposition are
included in noninterest expense.

Income Taxes — Sterling Bancshares files a consolidated federal income tax return with its
subsidiaries. Each computes income taxes as if it filed a separate return and remits to, or is reimbursed by
Sterling Bancshares based on the portion of taxes currently due or refundable.

Deferred income taxes are accounted for by applying statutory tax rates in effect at the balance sheet
date to differences between the book basis and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The resulting deferred
tax assets and liabilities are adjusted to reflect changes in enacted tax laws or rates. The Company has
established, and periodically reviews and re-evaluates, an estimated contingent tax liability on its
consolidated balance sheet to provide for the possibility of adverse outcomes in tax matters.
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Realization of net deferred tax assets is dependent on generating sufficient future taxable income.
Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not that all of the net
deferred tax assets will be realized:

Stock-based Compensation — The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation plans
using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting, as permitted, and discloses pro forma information
assuming the fair value-based method as prescribed by accounting principles. Because the exercise price of
the Company’s-employee stock options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant, no compensation expense is recognized on options granted. Compensation expense for restricted
stock awards is based on the market price of the stock on the date of grant and is recognized ratably over
the vesting period of the award.

If compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plans had been determined based
on the fair value method at the grant dates for awards, there would have been no material impact on the
Company’s reported net income or earnings per share. Pro forma information regarding net income and
earnings per share is required under accounting principles and has been determined as if the Company
accounted for its employee stock option plans under the fair value method. The fair value of options was
estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Option valuation models require use of highly
subjective assumptions. Also, employee stock options have characteristics that are significantly different
from those of traded options, including vesting provisions and trading limitations that impact their liquidity.
Because employee stock options have differing characteristics and changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the Black-Scholes valuation model does not
necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of employee stock options. The following table
shows information related to stock-based compensation in both the reported and pro forma earnings per
share amounts (dollars in thousands except for per share amounts):

2004 2003 2002
Netincome, asreported . ........vvrriieneriann... $24,963  $49,110 $36,551
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in
reported net income, net of related taxes................... 546 177 170
Less: total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method,
netof related taxes ......... . i (1,203)  (1,197)  (1,220)
Pro formamnet income. ... ... i $24,306  $48,090  $35,501
Earnings per share:
Basic—asreported ........... ... . $ 056 $ 111 $ 083
Basic—oproforma ........... . ... . i $ 054 §$§ 1.09 $ 0.81
Diluted —asreported............. ..., $ 055 § 1.10 $ 0.82
Diluted — pro forma. ..... R $ 054 $ 108 § 0.79

The Company expects to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment (Revised
2004),” on July 1, 2005. Among other things, SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to account for stock-
based compensation using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting and requires that such
transactions be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement based on their fair values on the
date of the grant. SFAS 123R is effective for the Company on July 1, 2005. See Recent Accounting
Standards below.

~
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Profit Sharing Plan — The Company has a profit sharing plan that covers substantially all employees.
Contributions are accrued and funded currently.

Statements of Cash Flows — Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, due from banks and federal
funds sold. Generally, federal funds are invested for one-day periods.

Earnings Per Share — Earnings per share (“EPS’) are presented under two formats: basic EPS and
diluted EPS. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income (after deducting dividends on
preferred stock) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year excluding non-
vested stock. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding and non-vested stock adjusted for the incremental shares issuable upon
conversion of preferred stock and issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options.

Comprehensive Income — Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity during the period
presented that result from transactions and other economic events other than transactions with
shareholders. The Company reports comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of shareholders’
equity.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to
current year presentation. All reclassifications have been applied consistently for the periods presented.

Recent Accounting Standards — On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted FIN 46R, Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities. Upon adoption, the trusts that previously issued the outstanding company-
obligated mandatorily redeemable trust preferred securities were deconsolidated from the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements. Instead, the junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company to
these subsidiary trusts are shown as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and interest expense
associated with the junior subordinated debentures is shown in the consolidated statements of income. The
Consolidated Financial Statements have been restated to reflect the adoption of FIN 46R. Adoption of
FIN 46R did not affect previously reported amounts for net income or shareholders’ equity.

In December 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Committee of the AICPA issued Statement
of Position No. 03-3 (“SOP 03-3"), Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a
Transfer. SOP 03-3 addresses the accounting for differences between the contractual cash flows and the
cash flows expected to be collected from purchased loans or debt securities if those differences are
attributable, in part, to credit quality. SOP 03-3 requires purchased loans and debt securities to be
recorded initially at fair value based on the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected with
no carryover of any valuation allowance previously recognized by the seller. Interest income should be
recognized based on the effective yield from the cash flows expected to be collected. To the extent that
the purchased loans experience subsequent deterioration in credit quality, a valuation allowance would be
established for any additional cash flows that are not expected to be received. However, if more cash flows
subsequently are expected to be received than originally estimated, the effective yield would be adjusted on
a prospective basis. Adoption of SOP 03-3 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition or results of operations.

SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 105, Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments
{(“SAB 105”) addresses the application of generally accepted accounting principles to loan commitments
accounted for as derivative instruments. SAB 105 provides that the fair value of recorded loan
commitments to be held for sale that are accounted for as derivatives should not incorporate the expected
future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the future loan. The provisions of SAB 105 must be
applied to loan commitments accounted for as derivatives that are entered into after March 31, 2004. The
adoption of SAB 105 did not have a material impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

, In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force reached a consensus on Issue No. 03-1, The

Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments. This Issue
provides guidance for determining when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired. This Issue
specifically addresses whether an investor has the ability and intent to hold an investment until recovery.
In addition, Issue 03-1 contains disclosure requirements that provide useful information about impairments
that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary for investments within the scope of this Issue. On
September 30, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board deferred the effective date of this Issue’s
guidance on how to evaluate and recognize an impairment loss that is other-than-temporary. This Issue’s
guidance is pending the issuance of a final FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) relating to the draft FSP EITF
Issue 03-1-a, Implementation Guidance for the Application of Paragraph 16 of EITF Issue No. 03-1, “The
Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” This deferral
did not change the disclosure guidance which remains effective for fiscal years ending after December 15,
2003.

SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (Revised 2004) establishes standards for accounting for
transactions in which an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of
the enterprise or (b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or
that may be settled by the issuance of such equity instruments. SFAS 123R eliminates the ability to
account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value-based method of accounting, and requires
that such transactions be recognized as compensation cost i the income statement based on their fair
values on the date of the grant. SFAS 123R applies to new awards and to awards modified, repurchased,
or cancelled after July 1, 2005. The Company plans to transition to fair value based accounting for stock-
based compensation using a modified version of prospective application (“modified prospective
application™). Additionally, compensation cost for the porticn of awards for which the requisite service has
not been rendered (generally referring to non-vested awards) that are outstanding as of July 1, 2005 must
be recognized as the remaining requisite service is rendered during the period of and/or the periods after
the adoption of SFAS 123R. The attribution of compensation cost for those earlier awards will be based
on the same method and on the same grant-date fair values previously determined for the pro forma
disclosures required for companies that did not adopt the fair value accounting method for stock-based
employee compensation. Based on the stock-based compensation awards outstanding as of December 31,
2004 for which the requisite service is not expected to be fully rendered prior to July 1, 2005, the
Company expects to recognize additional pre-tax, compensation cost of approximately $350 thousand in
2005 as a result of the adoption of SFAS 123R.

2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

Acquisitions. On October 31, 2003, the Company acquired South Texas Capital Group, Inc. of San
Antonio and its subsidiary bank, Plaza Bank for $16.0 million in cash and 125 thousand shares of Sterling
Bancshares’ common stock. Plaza Bank operated three banking offices in San Antonio having $83 million
of total assets at the date of acquisition. The operational integration of Plaza Bank and Sterling Bank was
completed in January 2004. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
Goodwill of $12.6 million and core deposit intangibles of $695 thousand were recorded in this acquisition.
The core deposit intangibles are being amortized on an accelerated amortization method over a 10 year
life.

On September 13, 2002, the Company acquired ENB Bankshares, Inc. of Dallas, for an aggregate
cash purchase price of $10.4 million. ENB Bankshares, Inc. operated one banking office in North Dallas
and had total assets of $70.8 million at acquisition. This acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method of accounting. Goodwiil of $5.7 and core deposit intangibles of $486 thousand were recorded in
this acquisition. The core deposit intangibles are being amortized on an accelerated amortization method
over a 10 year life.
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Divestiture of SCMC. On September 30, 2003, the Company sold its §0% interest in SCMC to
RBC Mortgage Company, an indirect subsidiary of the Royal Bank of Canada. The sales price for SCMC
was $102 million resulting in a pre-tax gain of $47.8 million. The pre-tax gain was determined after
subtracting $6.2 million of goodwill allocated to SCMC. In the sale of SCMC, the Company made certain
representations, warranties and indemnifications having terms of up to six years. The Company has
retained $2 million from the sales proceeds otherwise available for distribution for possible future claims
related thereto, and will continue to hold such funds for four years. In a separate transaction, SCMC’s
mortgage servicing portfolio was sold to other parties. A pre-tax loss of $1.6 million was recorded on the
sale of the mortgage servicing portfolio. SCMC’s operations were reported previously as the Company’s
mortgage-banking segment; which is now reported together with the net gain on sale as discontinued
operations.

The strategic divestiture of SCMC was made to better position the Company to serve small- and mid-
sized businesses. Net proceeds of the sale are available to support the Company’s ongoing internal growth
and to make strategic acquisitions. ‘ ‘

Divestitures of Banking Offices. On September 16, 2004, the Company closed one of its banking
offices and merged the operations into another location. The Company retained substantially all of the
loans and deposits associated with this location. The bank building and related fixtures were sold for a pre-
tax loss of $27 thousand. ‘

During 2003, the Company sold five of its banking offices in three separate transactions resulting in a
net pre-tax gain of $3.5 million. At the sales date, these banking offices had approximately $34.0 million in
loans and $150.9 million of deposits that were included in the sales transactions. The net gain was
determined based on the Company’s recorded investment in these offices including allocated goodwill and
intangibles.

These banking offices, located in rural areas, were sold because their operations and growth potential
did not align with the Company’s business banking strategy. These offices were acquired originally as part
of previous acquisitions.
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3. SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair value of securities are as follows (in thousands):
December 31, 2004

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Available-for-Sale
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
government agencies ...................... $ 38,254 $§ — $ (60) $ 8,194
Obligations of states of the U.S. and political
subdivisions . ........ ... i 4,035 99 (1) 4,133
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations ............ ... ...... 516,865 2,112 (2,652) 516,325
Other securities. .. .........coii i, 11,908 354 (210) 12,052
Total ... .o $541,062 $2,565 $(2,923) $540,704
Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of states of the U.S. and political
subdivisions . ........ ... o i e $ 61,956 $1,928 $ (71) $ 63,813
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage - obligations .............. .. ... .. 55,458 57 (306) 55,209
Total ... $117,414 $1,985 $ (377) $119,022
December 31, 2003
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Available-for-Sale
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other U.S.
government agencies . ..................... $ 86,006 $ 141 $ (39) $ 86,108
Obligations of states of the U.S. and political
Subdivisions . . ... .. 4,255 178 —_ 4,433
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations ............... ... ... 397,146 2,793 (1,165) 398,774
Other securities. . ........ .. i nenn.. 33,798 — (177) 33,621
Total ..o e $521,205 $3,112 $(1,381) $522,936
Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of states of the U.S. and political
subdivisions . ......... ... .. i e $ 38,336 $2,367 $§ —  $ 40,703
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations ........... ... .. ... .. 3,821 41 (4) 3,858
Total ...t $ 42,157 $2,408 $ (4) $ 44,561

The carrying amount of securities at December 31, 2004, by contractual maturity, are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Dollar amounts are shown in thousands.
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Held-to-Maturity Available-for-Sale
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Due inone yearorless ...................... $ 6,512 % 6,566 $ 6,552 % 6,512
Due after one year through five years .......... 24,906 26,438 4,447 4,479
Due after five years through ten years.......... 30,538 30,809 1,290 1,336
Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized
mortgage obligations ............. ... ... ... 55,458 55,209 516,865 516,325
Other securities ........ovviennennnenn. —_— — 11,908 12,052
Total ... $117,414  $119,022  $541,062  $540,704

The following table summarizes the proceeds received and gross realized gains and losses on the sales
of the available-for-sale securities (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Proceeds from salesand calls .......... .. ... .. ... .. $161,834  $32,487 $6,477
Gross realized gains ........ ... 5,860 907 122
Gross realized 10SS€S . . ...t (919) (2) (12)

During 2004, the Company sold $75.6 million of certain interest-only securities held in its available-
for-sale portfolio in two separate securitization transactions. The Company received proceeds of
$83.9 million and recognized net after-tax securitization gains totaling $3.4 million for these transactions.
The Company did not retain any interests in these securities and neither the investors in the securitization
trusts nor the trusts have any recourse other than for a breach of customary representations as to
ownership and origination, but not for credit loss or default.

Securities with unrealized losses segregated by length of impairment, were as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Less than 12 Months More than 12 Manths Tatal
Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Amortized Unrealized Amortized Unrealized
Cost Losses Fair Value Cost Losses Fair Value Cost Losses Fair Value

Available-for-Sale
Obligations of the U.S.

Treasury and other U.S.

government agencies .... $ 8254 $ (60) $ 8,194 $§ — $ — $ — § 8254 § (60) $ 8,194
Obligations of states of the

U.S. and political

subdivisions . ........... 227 (3] 226 — — — 227 (¢))] 226
Mortgage-backed securities

and collateralized

mortgage obligations ... 328,810  (2,566) 326244 5159 (86) 5073 333,969 (2,652) 331,317
Other securities .......... — — — 5970 (210) 5,760 5,970 (210) 5,760
Total .. ovoeie $337,201  $(2,627) $334,664 SI11,120  $(296)  $10,833 $348.420 $(2,923) $345497
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Less than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Amortized Unrealized Amortized Unrealized
Cost Losses Fair Value Cost Losses Fair Value Cost Losses Fair Value
Held-to-Maturity
Obligations of the U.S.
Treasury and other U.S.
government agencies . . $ 5838 $ (71) $ 5767 § - $ — $ $ 5838 § (71) § 5767
Mortgage-backed securities
and collateralized
mortgage obligations . ... 44,693 (306) 44,387 —- — 44,693 (306) 44,387
Total ................... $ 50,531 $ (377) $ 50,154 % — $ — $ $ 50,531 $ (377) $ 50,154

Declines in the fair value of individual securities below their cost that are other-than-temporary would
result in writedowns, as a realized loss, of the individual securities to their fair value. Management believes
that the unrealized losses on the Company’s securities portfolio were caused primarily by interest rate
increases. The Company does not consider these investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at

December 31, 2004.

The Company does not own any securities of any one issuer (other than the U.S. government and its
agencies) of which aggregate adjusted cost exceeds 10% of the consolidated shareholders’ equity at

December 31, 2004.

Securities with carrying values totaling $420.8 million and fair values totaling $422.7 million at
December 31, 2004 were pledged to secure public deposits.

4. LOANS

The loan portfolio is classified by major type as follows (in thousands):

Loans held for sale

Commercial and industrial

Real Estate:
Commercial

Construction . ......
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December 31,

2004 2003
Loans held for investment
Domestic
Commercial and industrial ............ ... ... ... ... . .... 682,209 671,482
Real Estate:
Commercial ....... ... . . . 1,015,114 829,199
ConStTUCHION . . .t i e e e 363,044 327,295
Residential mortgage . ... 179,623 195,363
Consumer/other .. ... ... . . 72,997 98,928
Foreign
Commercial and industrial ........... ... .. .. ... .. .. .. .. ... 21,785 7,886
Otherloans . ... 3,324 578
Total loans held for investment ............................. 2,338,096 2,130,731
Total l0A0S .. ..\ttt $2,344977  $2,157,039

Loan maturities and rate sensitivity of the loans held for investment excluding real estate —
residential mortgage and consumer loans, at December 31, 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

Due After
One Year
Due in One Through Five Due After
Year or Less Years Five Years Total
Commercial and industrial . .............. § 526,554 $145,439 $10,216 § 682,209
Real estate — commercial ........... A 708,463 251,227 55,424 1,015,114
Real estate — construction............... 302,414 47,932 12,698 363,044
Foreignloans .......................... 10,041 15,068 — 25,109
Total ... $1,547,472 $459,666 $78,338 $2,085,476
Loans with a fixed interest rate .. ......... $ 220,675 $436,731 $74,487 731,893
Loans with a floating interest rate......... 1,326,797 22,935 3,851 1,353,583
Total ... . $1,547,472 $459,666 $78,338 $2,085,476

The loan portfolio consists of various types of loans made principally to borrowers located in the
Houston, Dallas and San Antonio metropolitan areas. As of December 31, 2004, there was no
concentration of loans to any one type of industry exceeding 10% of total loans nor were there any loans
classified as highly leveraged transactions.

As of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, loans from Sterling Bank outstanding to directors,
officers and their affiliates were $15.3 million and $11.9 million, respectively. In the opinion of
management, all transactions entered into between Sterling Bank and such related parties have been and
are, in the ordinary course of business, made on the same terms and conditions as similar transactions with
unaffiliated persons. For the years ended 2004 and 2003, total principal additions were $6.3 million and
$2.3 million while principal payments were $3.0 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

The recorded investment in impaired loans is approximately $21.8 million and $35.7 million, at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Such impaired loans required an allowance for credit losses of
approximately $12.2 million and $17.6 million, respectively. The average recorded investment in impaired
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loans for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $19.4 million. Interest income on impaired loans of
$157 thousand was recognized for cash payments received for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Included in impaired loans are nonperforming loans of $20.6 million and $33.9 million at
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively, which have been categorized by management as
nonaccrual. Interest foregone on nonaccrual loans during December 31, 2004 was approximately
$1.0 million. The Company did not have any restructured loans as of December 31, 2004 or December 31,
2003.

When management doubts a borrower’s ability to meet payment obligations, typically when principal
or interest payment are more than 90 days past due, the loans are placed on nonaccrual status. Loans
90 days or more past due, not on nonaccrual were $2.4 million and $35 thousand at December 31, 2004
and December 31, 2003, respectively.

5. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

An analysis of activity in the allowance for credit losses is as follows (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of year ............. ... ... ... $30,722  $27,248  $22,927
Loans charged off . ....... ... ... . .. i 15,216 16,673 9,755
Loan recOVeries . ... ..o e e (2,476)  (1,947)  (1,720)
Net loans charged off . . ...... ... ... ... . . . 12,740 14,726 8,035
Allowance for credit losses associated with acquired
INSHEULIONS . .. e e e e e — 855 656
Allowance for credit losses associated with divested offices. . .. — (353) —
Provision for credit losses. ........ ... i 12,250 17,698 11,700
Balance atend of year ........ .o $30,232  $30,722  $27,248

6. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Land ... o $10,627  $14,173
Buildings and improvements .. ... ... ... 40,326 39,773
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .......... ...ttt 41,733 40,071

92,686 94,017
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization............... .. ...... (52,515) (45,476)
Total L $40,171  $48,541

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment totaled $8.7 million in 2004, $8.3 million in
2003 and $8.7 million in 2002.

During 2004, the Company recorded impairment charges of $1.4 million for a bank office building,
and two tracts of unused land which the Company intends to sell. At December 31, 2004, the bank office
building is included in premises and equipment since the Company does not expect the office building to
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be sold within one year. During 2004, the Company reclassified $3.0 million of unused land to held for
sale. One tract was subsequently sold. The remaining tract continues to be marketed for sale.

7. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reporting unit for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 2004 are as follows (in thousands):

South
Houston San Antonio Dallas Texas Total

Balance, January 1, 2003 .............. $29,613 $15,079 $5,662 $ 5,312  $55,666

Sale of rural banking offices ......... — — — (5,312)  (5,312)

Plaza Bank acquisition . ............. — 12,579 — — 12,579
Balance, December 31, 2003 ........... 29,613 27,658 5,662 — 62,933

Plaza Bank goodwill adjustments .. ... — (453) — — (453)
Balance, December 31, 2004 . .......... $29,613 $27,205 $5,662 § —  $62,430

The changes in the carrying amounts of the core deposit intangibles for the years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands):

Core Deposit

Intangibles
Balance, January 1, 2003 ... ... $2,096
AMOTHZATION EXPEISE . . vt vttt et et e et e et e et e et e e et (463)
Plaza Bank acquisition ... ....... .. i i e _ 695
Balance, December 31, 2003 ... ... e 2,326
Amortization expense ........... PP _(487)
Balance, December 31, 2004 . .. ... §_1,_8___32

Core deposit intangibles are amortized on an accelerated basis over their estimated lives of 10 years.
The projected amortization for core deposit intangibles as of December 31, 2004 is as follows (in
thousands):

Core Deposit

Intangibles
200 . e $ 399
2006 . L e e 330
2007 L e 278
2008 . L 234
2000 . 201
Thereafter . .o 397
JOta] o $1,839
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8. DEPOSITS
Included in certificates and other time deposits are individual amounts of $100,000 or more including

brokered deposits. The remaining maturities of these deposits are summarized as of December 31, 2004 as
follows (in thousands):

Three mMoOmthS OF 1SS ..ottt i e e $182,693
Over three through six months . ...... ... ... i i i 89,778
Over six through twelve months ........ ... .. . i i 57,296
Thereafter . ... .. e 62,340

Total .................. N $392,107

Interest expense for certificates of deposit in excess of $100,000 was approximately $9.1 million,
$9.8 million, and $11.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Also, at December 31, 2004, the Bank had $46.3 million in brokered deposits. Brokered deposits of
$24.2 million will mature in the first quarter of 2005 and the remaining balance of $22.1 million will

mature in the second quarter of 2005.

There are no major concentrations of deposits.

9. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are summarized as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ........... ... ... .. $418,000 $311,735
Federal funds purchased .......... ... . it 2,575 12,425
Total o $420,575  $324,160

The Company has an available line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Dallas,
which allows the Company to borrow on a collateralized basis. At December 31, 2004, borrowings under
this line of credit totaled $418.0 million and had maturities from three days to two weeks. The average
interest rate on these borrowings was 2.23% at December 31, 2004. These borrowings are collateralized by
single family residential mortgage loans, certain pledged securities, FHLB stock owned by the Company
and any funds on deposit with the FHLB. The Company utilizes these borrowings to meet liquidity needs.
Maturing advances are replaced with either additional borrowings or through increased customer deposits.

The Bank has available lines for federal funds purchased at correspondent banks. As of December 31,
2004, federal funds outstanding with a correspondent bank were $2.6 million. There is no maturity date on
these borrowings and the balance is payable upon demand. Interest expense related to federal funds
purchased is credited to a deposit account maintained by the correspondent bank with the Bank.

The Company has a revolving line of credit of $20.0 million with Wells Fargo Bank. This line of
credit matures on September 30, 2005, bears interest at 1.65% above the federal funds borrowing rate and
is subject to certain covenants. There were no borrowings outstanding on this line of credit at
December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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10. SUBORDINATED DEBT

During April 2003, the Bank raised approximately $50 million through a private offering of
subordinated unsecured notes. These subordinated notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.375% and mature
on April 15, 2013. Interest payments are due semi-annually. The subordinated notes may not be redeemed
or called prior to their maturity. Debt issuance costs of approximately $1.0 million are being amortized
over the ten-year term of the notes on a straight-line basis.

In June 2003, the Bank entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of
$50.0 million in which the Bank swapped the fixed rate to a floating rate. Under the terms of the swap
agreement, the Bank receives a fixed coupon rate of 7.375% and pays a variable interest rate equal to the
three-month LIBOR that is reset on a quarterly basis, plus 3.62%. This swap is designated as a fair-value
hedge that qualifies for the “short-cut” method of accounting. Changes in the fair value of both the
interest rate swap and the hedged subordinated debt are recorded in the statements of income. However,
the impact of these fully offset because of the hedge’s effectiveness. The swap’s fair value was $2.8 million
and $3.4 million with a floating rate of 5.69% and 4.77% on December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003,
respectively.

The Company’s credit exposure on the interest rate swap is limited to its net favorable fair value, if
any, and the interest payment receivable from the counterparty.

11. JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT/COMPANY MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE TRUST
PREFERRED SECURITIES

On January 1, 2004, the Company adopted FIN 46R, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.
Upon adoption, the trusts that previously issued the outstanding company-obligated mandatorily
redeemable trust preferred securities were deconsolidated from the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements. Instead, the junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company to these subsidiary trusts
are shown as liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets and interest expense associated with the junior
subordinated debentures are shown in the consolidated statements of income.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had the following issues of trust preferred
securities outstanding and junior subordinated debt owed to trusts (dollars in thousands):

Trust

Preferred

Securities - Junior Subordinated
Description Issuance Date Outstanding Interest Rate Debt Owed To Trusts Final Maturity Date
Capital Trust 1T ........ March 21, 2001 $28,750 9.20% Fixed $29,639 March 21, 2031
Statutory Trust One .. .. August 30, 2002 20,000 3-month LIBOR plus 20,619 August 30, 2032

. ) s 3.45%

Capital Trust IIT ....... September 26, 2002 31,250 8.30% Fixed 32,217 September 26, 2032
Total ................. $80,000 $82,475

Each of the trusts is a statutory business trust organized for the sole purpose of issuing trust securities
and investing the proceeds thereof in junior subordinated debentures of Sterling Bancshares, the sole asset
of each trust. The preferred trust securities of each trust represent preferred beneficial interests in the
assets of the respective trusts and are subject to mandatory redemption upon payment of the junior
subordinated debentures held by the trust. The common securities of each trust are wholly-owned by
Sterling Bancshares. Each trust’s ability to pay amounts due on the trust preferred securities is solely
dependent upon Sterling Bancshares making payment on the related junior subordinated debentures.
Sterling Bancshares’ obligations under the junior subordinated debentures and other relevant trust
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agreements, in aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by Sterling Bancshares of each
respective trust’s obligations under the trust securities issued by each respective trust.

Each issuance of trust preferred securities outstanding is mandatorily redeemable 30 years after
issuance and is callable beginning five years after issuance if certain conditions are met (including the
receipt of appropriate regulatory approvals). The trust preferred securities may be prepaid earlier upon the
occurrence and continuation of certain events including a change in their tax status or regulatory capital
treatment. In each case, the redemption price is equal to 100% of the face amount of the trust preferred
securities, plus the accrued and unpaid distributions thereon through the redemption date.

The trust preferred securities issued under Statutory Trust One were privately placed. The interest on
these securities is a floating rate that resets quarterly. Until August 30, 2007, there is a ceiling on the
three-month LIBOR of 8.50% resulting in a ceiling on the floating rate of 11.95% during this period. As of
December 31, 2004, the floating rate was 5.43% on these securities.

12. INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision for income taxes follow (in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
U, . . ottt e $8,333  $13,515  $13,107
Deferred . .. ... 1,151 522 2,610
Income tax expense from continuing operation................. 9,484 14,037 15,717
Income tax expense related to discontinued operations .......... — 25,064 2,361
Total .. $9,484 $39,101  $18,078

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the federal income tax
statutory rate of 35% to income from continuing operations as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Taxes calculated at statutory rate ........................... $12,056 $14,837 $17,115
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Change in estimate .. ... ...t iiiiinn e, (1,200) — —

Tax-exempt interest inCOmMe. .. ........ccovvvrninenenn. .. (762) (859) (1,011)

Tax-exempt income from bank-owned life insurance ......... (706) (703) (729)

Other, net. . ..ot e 96 762 342
Income tax expense from continuing operations ............... $ 9,484 $14,037 §15,717

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company revised its estimate to remove contingent
liabilities totaling $1.2 million related to the expiration of previous tax contingencies and refunds received.
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Significant deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows (in
thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
Real estate acquired by foreclosure .............. ... ... $ 74 §$§ 176
Allowance for credit 10SS€S .. ... .ot 9,786 9,025
Net operating loss carryforward ........... ... . ... .. 315 438
Deferred compensation . ........ ... . 1,493 1,056
Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities .................... 125 —
OtheT . . 669 1,138
Total deferred tax assets ......... ..t 12,462 11,833
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities ................... — 567
Depreciable assets .. ...t 573 431
Federal Home Loan Bank stock dividends .. ......................... 208 1,230
Other . . 1,028 794
Total deferred tax liabilities ............ ... . . .. . 1,809 3,022
Net deferred tax assets before valuation allowance ...................... 10,653 8,811
Valuation allowance .. ... . .. . (262) {262)
Net deferred tax a88€1S . ..ttt e e $10,391  $ 8,549

Net operating loss carryforwards expire on various dates beginning in 2005 through 2007. A valuation
allowance has been provided to offset deferred tax assets on net operating losses that cannot be utilized
under tax regulations.

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Profit sharing plan — The Company’s profit sharing plan includes substantially all employees.
Contributions to the plan are made at the discretion of the Board of Directors but generally equal up to
10% of the Company’s pre-tax net income, subject to IRS limitations. Employee contributions to 401 (k)
plan accounts are optional. The Company matches 50 percent of the employee’s 401 (k) plan account
contribution, up to 6 percent of the employee’s base pay and fully vest after four years of service. The
Company’s profit sharing and matching contributions are accrued and funded currently. Total profit sharing
and matching contribution expense for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was approximately $3.5 million, $4.5 million,
and $5.1 million, respectively.

Stock-based compensation — On April 28, 2003, Company shareholders approved the “2003 Stock
Incentive and Compensation Plan” (the “2003 Stock Plan”), a ten-year plan. The 2003 Stock Plan
provides for the issuance of a maximum of 2,150,000 shares of the Company’s common stock in the form
of unrestricted stock awards, restricted stock awards, stock appreciation rights or stock options.

Options are granted to officers and employees at exercise prices determined by the Human Resources
Programs Committee (“Committee”) of the Board of Directors. These options generally have exercise
prices equal to the fair market value of the common stock at the date of grant and vest ratably over a
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four-year period. Options granted under the plan must be exercised not later than ten years from the date
of grant.

A summary of changes in outstanding stock options, as restated for stock splits, is as follows (shares
in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Shares under option, beginning of year........ 2,081  $10.03 2,270  $9.07 2301 § 863
Shares granted .. ................. ... ... 103 13.71 350 12.13 221 12.23
Shares canceled/expired .. ............ ... (183) 12.86 (103) 1246  (88) 11.85
Shares exercised ............. ... ... .... (315) 6.67 (434) 5.43 (164) 5.75
Shares under option, end of year............. 1,686 $10.63 2,081 $10.03 2,270 $ 9.07
Shares exercisable, end of year .............. 1,183 $ 9.74 1,221 $ 8.63 1,222 $ 7.07
Weighted average fair value of options granted
during the year ........... . ... .. .. ... $ 3.40 $ 3.01 $ 3.335
Remaining authorized shares under approved
plans, end of year ......... ... ... ... ..., 2,377 1,892 408

The fair value of options at date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions:
2004 2003 2002

Expected life (years) ... ... ..o uuiuniint i 4.41 4,33 4.52

Risk free interest rate .. ...ttt i et e e 349% 293% 2.55%

Volatility ..o e 27.85% 29.27% 29.29%

Dividend yield .. ... oo e 1.40% 1.50% 1.47%

The following table presents information relating to the Company’s stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2004 (share data in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average
Number Weighted-Average Remaining Life Number Weighted-Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Exercise Price (Years) Exercisable Exercise Price
$313-$469 .......... 54 $ 394 1.2 54 $ 394
$470-%$626.......... 54 5.92 3.0 54 5.92
$ 627-% 782 .......... 269 7.12 4.4 269 7.12
$ 783-%$939.......... 246 8.76 39 246 8.76
$ 9.40-81095 .......... 76 10.13 4.6 75 10.13
$10.96 - $12.51 .......... 507 11.80 6.9 253 11.72
$12.52-31408 .......... 328 13.09 6.7 156 13.00
$14.09-$15.64 .......... 152 1498 7.2 76 1533
Total ................... 1,686 $10.63 3.8 1,183 $ 9.74
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Stock grant awards may be granted under the 2003 Stock Plan by the committee which has sole
authority to select the employees, establish the awards to be issued, and approve the terms and conditions
of each award contract. Share awards are generally awarded with a four-year vesting period and may be
subject to certain performance standards as established by the Committee. The market value of non-vested
shares at the date of grant is deferred and expensed ratably over the vesting period. The weighted-average
market price per share of non-vested stock awarded in 2004 was $13.51.

Grants for total shares of 97,265, 20,710, and 19,685 stock grants were made during 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. At December 31, 2004, there were 54,473 unvested shares outstanding under previous
stock grants. Compensation expense of $840 thousand, $272 thousand, and $261 thousand was recorded
during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, for the stock grant awards. Compensation expense related to
non-vested stock awards totaled $532 thousand in 2004.

Stock purchase plan — The Company offers the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase
Plan”) effective July 1, 2004, which superceded the 1994 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. An aggregate of
1.5 million shares of Company common stock may be issued under this plan subject to adjustment upon
changes in capitalization. The Purchase Plan is a compensatory benefit plan to all employees who are
employed for more than 20 hours per week and meet minimum length-of-service requirements of three
months. The Purchase Plan is subscribed through payroll deduction only and deductions may not exceed
10% of the eligible employee’s compensation. The purchase price for shares available under the Purchase
Plan is 90% of the lower of the fair market value on either the quarterly enrollment date or exercise date.
During 2004, 16,592 shares were subscribed for through payroll deduction. Under the 1994 Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, 4,737 and 12,326 shares were subscribed for through payroll deduction during 2004
and 2003, respectively, and 1,925 shares were purchased during 2003.

14, SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferved stock — The Board of Directors has approved the sale of convertible preferred stock in
series pursuant to confidential private placement memoranda upon the opening of various banking offices.
The shares are sold to investors who may assist in the business development efforts of the opening office
and are convertible to common shares dependent on that banking office meeting certain performance and
deposit growth goals. The conversion ratio into common stock is predetermined at time of placement. On
November 7, 2004, each of 20,000 shares Series I Preferred Stock, issued on March 7, 2002 in connection
to the opening of a Dallas banking office, was converted into one share of common stock based on the
performance goals attained. ‘

During 2003, outstanding shares of Series H preferred stock issued in the year 2000 were converted
into 64,350 common shares. The conversion into common stock was made at a 1.1x conversion rate based
on the attainment of performance goals by the Bellaire office.
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15. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE
Earnings per common share was computed based on the following (in thousands, except per share

amounts):
Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Income from continuing operations. .. ................vonon.. $24,963  $28,354  $33,183
Income from discontinued operations .. ...................... — 20,756 3,368
NEt INCOIMIE .ot ittt e e e e e e e e $24963  $49,110  $36,551
Basic:
Weighted average shares outstanding . ..................... 44,839 44,180 43,872
Diluted:
Add incremental shares for:
Assumed exercise of outstanding options and non-vested
stock grant awards ...... ... ..o i 422 439 790
Assumed conversion of preferred stock .................. 17 29 94
Total . .o 45,278 44,648 44,756
Earnings per share
BasiC . .t $ 056 $ 111 § 0.83
Diluted ... ... $ 055 § 110 $ 0.82
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic . .o $§ 056 $ 064 § 076
Diluted .. ..o e $ 055 $ 064 § 074

The incremental shares for the assumed exercise of the outstanding options were determined by
application of the treasury stock method. The incremental shares for the conversion of the preferred stock
were determined assuming applicable performance goals had been met. The calculation of diluted earnings
per share excludes 219 thousand, 620 thousand and 267 thousand options outstanding during 2004, 2003,
and 2002, respectively, that were anti-dilutive.

16. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Leases — A summary as of December 31, 2004, of noncancelable future operating lease commitments
follows (in thousands):

2005 L e $ 3,825
2006 . 3,766
2007 e e 3,584
200 L e e e 3,153
2000 . e e e e 3,949
Thereafter ... ... e 6,722
TOta) . e e e $24,999
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Rent expense under all noncancelable operating lease obligations, net of income from noncancelable
subleases aggregated, was approximately $3.4 million, $3.5 million and $3.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Litigation — The Company has been named as a defendant in various legal actions arising in the
normal course of business. In the opinion of management, after reviewing such claims with outside
counsel, resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the consclidated financial
statements.

Severance and non-competition agreements — The Company has entered into severance and non-
competition agreements with certain executive officers. Under these agreements, upon a termination of
employment under the circumstances described in the agreements, each executive officer would receive:
(i) two years’ base pay; (ii) an annual bonus for two years in an amount equal to the highest annual
bonus paid to the respective executive officer during the three years preceding termination or change in
control (as defined in the agreement); (iii) continued eligibility for Company perquisites, welfare and life
insurance benefit plans, to the extent permitted, and in the event participation is not permitted, payment of
the cost of such welfare benefits for a period of two years following termination of employment;

(iv) payment of up to $20,000 in job placement fees; and (v) to the extent permitted by law or the
applicable plan, accelerated vesting and termination of all forfeiture provisions under all benefit plans,
options, restricted stock grants or other similar awards.

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

The Company is a party to various financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal
course of business to meet the financial needs of its customers. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets. The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit is represented by the contractual or notional amount
of these instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making these commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments.

The following is a summary of the various financial instruments entered into by the Company (in
thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Commitments to extend credit. ........ ... ... i $657,740  $483,046
Standby letters of credit ....... ... ... .. 28,435 24,455

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of
any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being fully drawn upon, the total commitment amounts disclosed above do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-
by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if considered necessary by the Company, upon extension
of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk to the Company in issuing letters of credit is
essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to its customers.
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Off-balance sheet arrangements also include the Trust Preferred Securities, which have been de-
consolidated in this report as required by Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” Further information regarding the Trust Preferred Securities
can be found in Note 11 of this report. ‘

18. REGULATORY MATTERS

Capital requirements — The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements adminis-
tered by the state and federal banking agencies. Any institution that fails to meet its minimum capital
requirements is subject to actions by regulators that could have a direct material effect on its financial
statements. Under the capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines based on the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital amount
and classification under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators.

To meet the capital adequacy requirements, Sterling Bancshares and the Bank must maintain
minimum capital amounts and ratios as defined in the regulations. Management believes, as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, that Sterling Bancshares and the Bank met all capital adequacy
requirements to which they are subject.

As of December 31, 2004, the most recent notification from the regulatory banking agencies
categorized Sterling Bank as “well capitalized” under the regulatory capital framework for prompt
corrective action and there have been no events since that notification that management believes have
changed the Bank’s category. The Company’s consolidated and the Bank’s capital ratios are presented in
the following table:

To Be Categorized
as Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(In thousands, except percentage amounts)

CONSOLIDATED:

As of December 31, 2004:

Total capital (to risk weighted assets)........ $406,343  14.6% $223,457 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ....... 328948 11.8% 111,729 4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) ............ 328,948 10.1% 129,625 4.0% N/A N/A
As of December 31, 2003:

Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ........ $383,252  15.4% $199,095 8.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ....... 305997  12.3% 99,547  4.0% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) ............ 305,997 104% 117,883  4.0% N/A N/A
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To Be Categorized
as Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

STERLING BANK:
As of December 31, 2004:

Total capital (to risk weighted assets)........ $399,808
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ....... 322,413
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) ............ 322,413
As of December 31, 2003:

Total capital (to risk weighted assets) ........ $372,563
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ....... 296,147
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) ............ 296,147

(In thousands, except percentage amounts)

14.3%
11.6%
9.9%

15.4%
12.3%
10.3%

$222,987
111,494
129,387

$193,441
96,721
115,542

8.0%

4.0%
4.0%

8.0%
4.0%
4.0%

$278,734  10.0%
167,241 6.0%
161,733 5.0%

$241,802  10.0%
145,081 6.0%
144,427 5.0%

As discussed in Note 1, the Company adopted FIN 46R on January 1, 2004 and deconsolidated
outstanding trust preferred securities from the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements. However,
trust preferred securities are still considered in calculating The Company’s Tier 1 capital ratios. On
March 1, 2005, the Federal Reserve released final rules for the capital treatment of trust preferred
securities. The rules, as applicable to us, would limit the aggregate amount of trust preferred securities and
certain other capital elements to 25% of Tier 1 capital, net of goodwill. At December 31, 2004
approximately $62.2 million of the $82.5 million of trust preferred securities would count as Tier 1 capital.
The excess amount of trust preferred securities not qualifying for Tier 1 capital may be included in Tier 2
capital. This amount is limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. There is a five-year transition period for banks to
become compliant with the new rules. Additionally, the rules provide that trust preferred securities no
longer qualify for Tier 1 capital within 5 years of their maturity. Under the final rules, the Company’s
consolidated capital ratios at December 31, 2004 would have been:

Pro forma Ratio:

Total capital (to risk weighted assets) .. ...t 14.6%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) ......... ..o 11.1%
Tier 1 capital (t0 AVETAge aSSELS) .« ..\ vttt ittt ittt et e 9.6%

Dividend restrictions — Dividends paid by the Bank and Sterling Bancshares are subject to certain
restrictions imposed by regulatory agencies. Under these restrictions there was an aggregate of
approximately $44.2 million and $87.5 million available for payment of dividends at December 31, 2004,

by the Bank and Sterling Bancshares, respectively.
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19. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As discussed in Note 2, the Company sold its 80% interest in SCMC on September 30, 2003 to RBC
Mortgage Company, an indirect subsidiary of the Royal Bank of Canada. SCMC’s operations were
reported previously as the Company’s mortgage banking segment; which is now reported together with the
net gain on sale as discontinued operations. As such the results of operations and cash flows of SCMC
have been removed from the Company’s results of continuing operations for all periods presented. The
results of SCMC presented as discontinued operations in the statement of income are as follows (in
thousands except per share amount):

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2003 2002
Net interest income (loss) after provision for credit losses .............. $ (4,407) $(2,318)
Noninterest income:
Gain on the sale of mortgage loans ............ ... ... i, 34,621 32,385
Mortgage origination INCOME . .. ... .coouvtrre vttt e, 23,823 23,641
Gain on the sale of Sterling Capital Mortgage Company .............. 47,783 —
Other . ..o 8,064 10,987
Total noninterest iNCOME . .. ...t i i i 114,291 67,013
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits .. .......... ... ... it 24,246 26,814
OCCUPANEY EXPEIISE . .\ttt et ettt ettt e e e 9,420 8,663
Technology . ... i e e 878 676
Professional fees........ ... ..o i 773 536
Postage and delivery charges . ....... ... ... .o i i 1,231 1,119
Mortgage servicing rights amortization and impairment ........... . 16,615 13,150
Minority interest expense for SCMC ............ ... ... ... ... . ... 40 842
OtheT . . o 10,861 7,166
Total noNINterest EXPense . .. ... ovui vttt ie e, 64,064 58,966
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes............... 45,820 5,729
Provision for InCOMe taXes ... ..ottt e e 25,064 2,361
Income from discontinued operations .............v it $ 20,756 $ 3,368
Earnings per share from discontinued operations:
BasiC ... § 047 § 0.08
Diluted ... o $ 046 $ 0.08

All assets and liabilities of SCMC were sold as of September 30, 2003. Thus these assets and
liabilities are not included in the December 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet.

20. DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of financial instruments were determined by management as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and required considerable judgment. Accordingly, the estimates presented
herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize in a current market
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exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a materiai
effect on the estimated fair values presented.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of cash and of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value:

Cash and Short-term Investments — For cash and short-term investments, the carrying amount is a
reasonable estimate of fair value.

Securities — For securities, fair value equals quoted market prices, if available. If a quoted market
price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Trading Assets — Securities bought with the anticipation of sale in the near term are carried at fair
market value which equals quoted market prices. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is
estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities.

Loans Held for Sale — For loans held for sale, fair value equals quoted market prices, if available. If
a quoted market price is not available, the fair value is estimated by discounting the future cash flows
using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and
for the same remaining maturities.

Loans Held for Investment — The fair value of fixed-rate loans is estimated by discounting the future
cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit
ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Deposit Liabilities — The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts and certain money market
deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of certificates of deposit is
estimated using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Subordinared Debt — The subordinated debt is carried at fair value because this borrowing is hedged
fully by an interest rate swap that reprices at market rates on a quarterly basis.

Junior Subordinated Debt — For junior subordinated debentures, fair value equals quoted market
prices, if available. If a quoted market price is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for similar subordinated debentures.

Short-Term Borrowings — Short-term borrowings are carried at fair value because these borrowings
reprice at market rates generally within ninety days.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments — The fair value of commitments is estimated using the
fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the
agreements and the present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair
value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The
fair value of guarantees and letters of credit is based on fees currently charged for similar agreements or
on the estimated cost to terminate them or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties at the
reporting date. These amounts were not significant at the reporting dates.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and short-term investments...... $ 89,034 § 89,034 $ 138,122 § 138,122
Trading assets............c.oovuun.. 36,720 36,720 172,825 172,825
Available-for-sale securities .......... 540,704 540,704 522,936 522,936
Held-to-maturity securities ........... 117,414 119,022 42,157 44,561
Loans held forsale ................. 6,881 6,881 26,308 26,308
Loans held for investment............ 2,338,096 2,433,474 2,130,731 2,257,296
Less allowance for credit losses ....... (30,232) (30,232) (30,722) (30,722)
Total ... $3,098,617 $3,195,603  $3,002,357  $3,131,326
Financial liabilities:
Deposits. .......cooiiiiii i $2,443,967  $2,358,599  $2,418,369  $2,384,270
Junior subordinated debt............. 82,475 82,475 82,475 82,475
Subordinated debt .................. 47,162 47,162 46,533 46,533
Interest rate swap................... 2,788 2,788 3,411 3,411
Short-term borrowings............... 420,575 420,599 324,160 324,160
Total ... ... $2,996,967 $2,911,623  $2,874,948  $2,840,849
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21. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The table below sets forth unaudited financial information for each quarter of the last two years (in

thousands, except per share amounts):

2004 2003
Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter  Quarter
Interestincome. ..........cooviinnn ... $44,560 $41,837 $39,494 340,206 $38,175 $43,988 $44,895 $44,325
Interest eXpense ..........c.ccoviiieenenn. 8,794 7,586 7,148 7,185 6,932 8,255 9,161 8,800
Net interest income ............covnvn... 35,766 34,251 32,346 33,021 31,243 35,733 35,734 35,525
Provision for credit losses .................. 3,854 2,115 2,781 3,500 3,000 4,150 6,098 4,450
Net interest income after provision for credit
J0SSES . oottt e 31,912 32,136 29,565 29,521 28,243 31,583 29,636 31,075
Noninterest income ....................... 6,133 6,795 10,777 7,217 7,429 7,478 7,087 11,276
Noninterest eXpense . .........oooeuenan. .. 30,967 29,495 30,085 29,062 27,892 27,929 27,504 28,091
Income from continuing operations before ’
INCOME tAXES . v\ viiiiieiae et nann 7,078 9,436 10,257 7,676 7,780 11,132 9,219 14,260
Provision for income taxes ............... 908 2,950 3,184 2,442 2,583 3,707 3,028 4,719
Income from continuing operations .......... 6,170 6,486 7,073 5,234 5,197 7,425 6,191 9,541
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
before income taxes . .................... — — — — 1,101 44,426  (2,534) 2,827
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ....... ; — — — —_ 407 24,510 (984) 1,131
Income (loss) from discontinued operations. . . — — — — 694 19916  (1,550) 1,696
NEt iNCOME . e vt $ 6,170 $ 6,486 $ 7,073 $ 5234 $ 5891 $27,341 § 4,641 $11,237
Earnings per share:
Basic ....... ... . . $ 014 $ 014 $ 016 § 012 § 013 $ 062 $ 011 $ 026
Diluted.........ccoovieiiiiia i, $ 014 $ 014 $ 016 $ 012 $ 013 $ 061 $ 010 $ 0.25
Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic ........ e $ 014 $ 014 $ 016 $ 012 $ 012 $ 017 $ 014 $§ 022
Diluted. ............... ... i $ 014 § 014 $ 016 $ 012 $ 012 $ 017 $ 014 $ 0.21

Earnings per common share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented and

therefore may not sum to the totals for the year.
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22. PARENT-ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

2004 2003
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ....... ... ... i $ 2,358 $ 383
Accrued interest receivable and other assets . ........ ... .. . . . .. 4,229 3,942
Goodwill .. o e 527 527
Investment in subsidiaries . ... ... ... i e 386,116 367,892
Investment in Sterling Bancshares Capital Trusts ......... ... ... ... . ...... 2,475 2,475
TOTAL ASSETS . e e e $395,705  $375,219
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:

Accrued interest payable and other liabilities. . ......... ... . $ 58 § 148

Junior subordinated debt . .. ... ... . 82,475 82,475

Total Habilities . ... ..ot e 82,533 82,623

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES . ... ... o i, — —
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Convertible preferred stock .. ... ... — 20

Common SIOCK . .. oo o e e 45,068 44,642

Capital SUTPIUS . ..ot e 54,522 48,953

Retained CAITHIIES -« o e ittt e e e et e e e e e e 213,814 197,819

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), netof tax.................. (232) 1,162

Total shareholders” equity . ... ... i e 313,172 292,596

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY ................... $395,705  $375,219
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2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

REVENUES:
Dividends received from bank subsidiaries.......................... $10,095 $47,589  $12,650
Other INCOMIE . .\ o oottt e e e e e e e e 193 191 333
Total TeVeNUES . . ..o 10,288 47,780 12,983
EXPENSES:
Interest expense:
Notes payable ........ ... . — 585 797
Junior subordinated debt . ... .. ... .. 6,431 6,379 6,097
General and administrative . .......... .. it 1,666 1,731 2,811
Total eXpenses . .. ...t e 8,097 8,695 9,705
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries and
INCOME 1AXES & ottt et e ettt e et e e e e e 2,191 39,085 3,278
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ....................... 20,009 7,084 30,021
Income before income tax benefit. . ........ ... .. ... .. .. . 22,200 46,169 33,299
Income tax benefit ......... .ot 2,763 2,941 3,252
Net INCOmME ..o e $24,963  $49,110  $36,551
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STERLING BANCSHARES, INC.
(Parent Company Only)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, 2003 AND 2002

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Nt INCOIMIE ottt e e e e e e $ 24963 $ 49,110 § 36,551

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary.................. (20,009) (7,084)  (30,021)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable and other assets ................. (287) 1,246 (1,565)
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities ................ 1 (194) (263)
Net cash provided by operating activities. . ................ 4,668 43,078 4,702
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Plaza Bank ............ .. .. ... . ... .. . .. — (18,329) —
Purchase of ENB Bankshares, Inc. ........... ... ... ... ... .... — — (10,376)
Proceeds from sale of Plaza Bank Charter ................... ... 300 — -
Capital contribution to Sterling Bancshares Capital Trust III....... — — (967)
Capital contribution to Sterling Bancshares Statutory Trust One . ... — — (619)
Redemption iof investment in Sterling Bancshares Capital Trust 1. .. — — 889
Capital investment in subsidiary banks.......................... — — (12,000)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ......... 300 (18,329)  (23,073)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments iof notes payable .............. ... ..., — (21,430) (602)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ....................... 5,975 4,940 2,098
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock ................. ... ... — — 242
Payments of cash dividends . .. .. ...... ... . ... ... ...l (8,968) (7,955) (7,031)
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures ......... — — 52,836
Redemption of junior subordinated debentures ................... — — (29,639)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ......... (2,993) (24,445) 17,904
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS ... e e 1,975 304 (467)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR .. 383 79 546
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ......... $ 2358 § 383 § 79
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